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Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited

TRANSMITTAL LETTER

All Shareholders

Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms, Bangladesh
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission

Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited

Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL)

All other Stakeholders

Sub: Annual Report for the year ended on December 31,2019.

Dear Sir,

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report-2019 together with the
Audited Financial Statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue Account, Cash Flow
Statement and Notes to the Accounts for the year ended on December 31, 2019 for
your kind information and record.

Sincerely Yours,

O

Md. Abu Sayed Sarker
Company Secretary (Acting)
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Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited
Registered Office: Padma Life Tower
115, Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Bangla Motor, Dhaka-1000.
Email:info@padmaislamilife.cam, Web.: www.padmaislamilife.com

NOTICE OF THE 20TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 20th Annual General Meeting of Padma Islami Life Insurance
Limited will be held virtually using digital platform on Saturday, September 26,2020 at 11.00
am to transact the following businesses:

| AGENDA |

01. Torecelve, consider and adopt the Directors'and the Auditors’ Report and the Audited
Accounts of the Company for the year ended December 31,2019.

02. To elect/re-elect Directors as per the Articles of Association of the Company.
03. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year 2020 and to fix their remuneration.

04. To appoint Compliance Auditors of Corporate Governance for the year 2020 and to fix their remuneration.
05. ToTransact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Cer

Md. Abu Sayed Sarker
Company Secretary (Acting)
Date: September 02,2020

MNotes:

1}  The'Record Date'was fixed on August 24, 2020, Shareholders whose names appear in the Register
of Members on the Record Date will be eligible to attend the meeting.

2}  Pursuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's Order No. SEC/SRMRC/04-
231/25 dated 08 July 2020, the AGM will be a virtual meeting of the members, which will be
conducted via live webcast by using digital platform. The detailed procedures to attend the
meeting will be communicated to the shareholder’s e-mail ID in due course and it will also be
available on the Company's website at www.padmaislamilife.com,

3}  Forlogin to the system, the Members need to put their 16-digit Beneficiary Owner (BO) ID number
and other credentials as proof of their identity while visiting the AGM link which will be available on
the company's website. The Members will be able to submit their questions/comments electroni-
cally 24 hours before commencement of the AGM and during the AGM.

4) The Members are encouraged to login to the system prior to the meeting at 11.00 a.m on 26th
September 2020 (Saturday). The webcast will start on 11.00 a.m. Members may contact Mobile
MNo. 01711334044 for any T related guidance in accessing the virtual meeting and maobile No.
01916038556 for share related issues.

5) Pursuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated 20th June 2018, the soft copy of the Annual
Report 20192 has already been sent to the e-mail addresses of the members available in their
Beneficiary Owner (BO) accounts maintained with the Depository. These are also available in the
Company's website at: www.padmaislamilife.com.

6) A memberentitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy (such
proxy will be a member of the Company) te attend and vote on his/her behalf. The Proxy Form
duly stamped of Tk. 20.00 should be deposited at the Head Office of the Company not less than
72 hours before the time fixed for the AGM.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

-

*

Company Name

: Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited

Year of Establishment

: 2000

Date of Incorporation

. 26th April, 2000

Authorized Capital

: Tk. 100 Crores

Paid-up Capital

: Tk.38.80 Crores

Mature of Business

: Life Insurance Business

.~ Incorporation of the Company . April 26, 2000

-~ Commencement of Business : April 26, 2000

% License issued by Chief Controller of Insurance . April 30, 2000

-, Convert to Islami Life : 2002

o, First Policy Issued : June 12, 2000
@ Initial Public Offering (IPO)
@ Letter of Consent November 29, 2011
@ Publication of Prospectus + December 01, 2011

@ Subscription opened
@ Subscription Closed

@ Lottery held for Allotment of Shares

: February 22, 2012

February 26, 2012

: March 22, 2012

., Listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.

: April 08, 2012

. Listed with Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

¢ March 14, 2012

., Trading of shares on Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.

: April 18, 2012

., Trading of shares on Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

. April 18, 2012

-~ Authorized capital increased to BDT 100.00 crore

: December 31, 2010
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SUPPORT SERVICES PROVIDER

*

*

Actuarial Consultant
Mr. Zafar Halim

Emporia Park View

Flat # 9A, House # 1/C, Road # 86
North Guishan, Dhaka -1212,

Auditor
Kazi Zahir Khan & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Shamsunnahar Complex, 8th Floor

(2nd Lift), Flat-9B, 31/C/1, Topkhana Road
Segunbagicha, Dhaka-1000.

Re-insurer

SCOR GLOBAL LIFE SE, SINGAPORE BR.
143, Cecil Street # 22-04,

GB Building, Singapore-069542

Medical Consultant
Dr. Abdus Salam Khan
MBBS, FCGP

STC (Medicine)

Bankers

Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd.
Exim Bank Ltd.

Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd.
The First Security Islami Bank Ltd.
Agrani Bank Ltd.

AB Bank Ltd.

Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd.
Jamuna Bank Ltd.
Bangladesh Krishi Bank
Bank Asia Ltd.

Dhaka Bank Ltd.

DBBL

Janata Bank Ltd.

Saocial Islami Bank Ltd.
Mercantile Bank Ltd.

Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.

National Credit and Comm. Bank Ltd.
Mational Bank Ltd.

One Bank Ltd.

Prime Bank Ltd.

Premier Bank Ltd.

Pubali Bank Ltd.

Rupali Bank Ltd.

Sonali Bank Ltd.

City Bank Ltd.

Uttara Bank Ltd.

Bangladesh Commerce Bank Ltd.
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Mr. Dewan Nurul lslam, FCA, MBA
Vice Chairman

Mrs. Zaman Ara Begum
Director

Dr. Mohammad Nayeem Abdullah
Independent Director

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Prof. N R M Borhan Uddin, Ph.D.
Chairman

Mr. Humayun Bokhteyar, FCA, ACPA
Director

Dr. Md. Nurul Aktar Chowdhury
Independent Directar

Prof, Dr. Serajul Hogue
Independent Director
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Mr. Md. Zahirul Islam
Director

|
Md. Belal Hussain, FCA
Independent Directar

Md. Morshed Alam Siddigui
Chief Executive Officer (C.0)
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OUR BOARD COMPOSITION AND ITS OPERATION

Our Board comprises renowned personalities and veteran professionals with long and diverse profes-
sional experience. They all have proven track records of company management. As a matter of fact, out
of nine directors, three directors are professional Chartered Accountants, three are Ph.D Degree hold-
ers and one is a renowned physician. Rest two directors are also eminent personalities having tertiary
level of academic qualification and corporate exposure. As on end of December 2019, our Board com-
position was as follows:

Sl. No. Mame of Directors Position

01 Professor NRM Borhan Uddin, ph.D (Nominated by Paviion Intemational Lid. | Chairman

02 Dewan Nurul Islam, FCA, MBA (Nominated by Creast Holdings Ltd.) Viee Chairman

03 Mr. Humayun Bokhteyar, FAC, ACPA (Nominated by Unitex LP Gas Lid.) Director

o4 Md. Zahirul Islam {(Mominated by Unitex Petraleum Ltd.) Director

05 Mrs. Zaman Ara Begum (Nominated by Affinity Assets Lid.) Director

D6 Dr. Md, Murul Aktar Chowdhury Independant Dirgctor
o7 Dr. Mohammad Nayesm Abdullah Independant Director
o8 Professar Dr. Serajul Hoque Independent Director
09 Md. Belal Hussain, FCA Independent Director

Expertise and diversity of our Board

in a rapidly changing business atmaosphere, Directors' expertise is very crucial, as the Board is constantly
required to make strategic decisions that can have short, medium and long-term impacts,

Our rich Board diversity provides varied perspectives that enrich the quality of our decision making
process and our decision itself. Particularly, Directors with professional background leverage their

expertise and skills in key areas, including, core business, finance, accounts, audit, law, administration,

human resources and ESG (environment, social and governance) to contribute to the Board's informed
and objective decision-making process.

Independence and transparency of our Board

Our Board makes independent judgments and decisions, with Directors appoeinted through a trans-
parent and regulatory-compliant procedure. To enhance the independence of our Board, we have
ensured that our Board is adequately represented by Independent Directors.

Qut of nine Directors in the Board, four Directors are Independent Directors. In the spirit of transparency and
compliance, this meets the requirements prescribed under BSEC guidelines, which states that Independent
Directors must constitute one-fifth of the total strength of the Board of a publicly listed company.

Separation of supervision and execution role

As a measure of embracing enhanced transparency, we have also separated the role of the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (MD & CEO). This
is in line with the provision of Corporate Governance Code issued by BSEC.
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Sub-committees of the Board

The Board has established seven sub-committees, in accordance with BSEC guidelines and as a matter of
transparency and openness. Each committee is mandated with the responsibility of stipulating its own
organization, operations and authority in accordance with the regulations of the committees established

under the Board.
Board of
Directors
Shariah Board |
I | L 1 1 |

) Momination and Business _ Financa &
Audit Remuneration Developmeant Executive Claim Investment
Commities Committes Committes Commiites Committea Commiiliee

Figure 1 Board and Sub-Committees
Committee Charter

All the Board Committees have a written charter that addresses the Committees’ purposes, duties and
responsibilities, quorum and proceedings.

Meetings

The Board requires holding at least regularly scheduled meetings each year.In the year 2019,08 (eight)
Board meetings were held to discuss scheduled businesses of the Company. Sub-committees are also
required to hold meetings on a timely manner.

Tenure and Retirement of Directors

The office of Directers is subject to retirement as per Articles: At least one-third of the Directors from
each group shall retire by rotation in every Annual General Meeting. The Independent Directors are
appointed for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

Directors’ Responsibility

Each Director uses his or her best efforts to attend all the meetings of the Board and the Committees
to which such Director is appointed. The Directors are responsible for developing and upgrading the
Company's Corporate Governance, Policies & Principles, Code of Business Conduct and the Charter of
each Committee in which such Directors are engaged. For review, materials are provided to the mem-
bers in advance of Board and various Committes meetings.

Director Compensation

Except the Managing Director, none of the Director holds any position and does not receive any remu-
neration other than fees for attending the Board/Committee meetings. The maximum fees payable to
Directors is Tk. 8,000 for attending each meeting.

Contact to Directors

Interested parties may communicate with any Director by sending letter to such Directors giving attention
to the Company Secretary, regarding any matter related to the company affairs to the following address:

Padma Islami Life Insurance Ltd.
Padma Life Tower (Lift floor-3)
115, Kazi Mazrul Islam Avenue
Bangla Motor, Dhaka-1000.

E-mail: info@padmaislamilife.com
Web: www.padmaislamilife.com
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MEMBERS OF SHARIAH BOARD

Mufti Moulana Sayed Ahmed Muzaddade

Chairman, Shariah Board. Padma Islamd Life Insorance Lud.

Grand Mufti- Darussalam Madrasha, Mirpur, Dhaka.

Moulana Jafor Ahmad (Abu Jafor)

Mr. Syed Emran Hossain, Barrister at Taw ]

Member, Sharish Board, Padma Tslami Life Tnsurance Lid.
Imam & Khatib- Masjid Baitush Sharaf, Farmgate, Dhaka,
‘Member, Shariah Board. Padma Islami Life Insurance Lid.
Member- Dhaka Bar Association & Supreme Court Bar

Association

Mufiti Moalana Md. Harun or Rashid

Prof. Moulana ABM Masum Billah

Prof. N R M Borhan Uddin, Ph.D.

Member, Shariah Board, Padma Istarmi Life Insurance Lid.
Head of Mohaddis, Dhaka Aliva Madrasha
Khalib, Bansree Central Jame Masjid

Member Secretary, Shariah Board, Padma [slami Life
Insuranee Lid.
Secretnry General, Central Sharlah Couneil for Islamic
Isurance of Bangladesh,
Founder & Secreiary General, Dr. Sheikh Redwan Al-
madan Complex, Bauful, Pawalkhali,

“Member, Shariah Board, Padma Istami Life Insurance Ltd,
Chairman, Board of Directors, Padma Islami Life Insurance

Lid.

Mr. Dewan Nurul Istam, FCA

Member. Shariah Board, Padma Islamu Life Insurance Lid.
Yice Chairman, Board of Divectors, Padima Islami Life

Insurance Lid.
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

Md. Morshed Alam Siddiqui
Chief Executive Officer (Current Charge)

Head of Curstomer Service
Mr. Nur Nabi
Head of Finance & Accounts

Mr.Shakhawat Hossain

Head of Internal Audit & Compliance
Mr.Harun or Rashid

Mr. Anwar Hossain
Incharge- Development Administration
Mr.Md. Mobarok Hossain

Board Affairs & Public Relations

Incharge- HR & Admin
Mr. Abdullah-Al-Murshed

Incharge- Group Insurance
Mr.Mohammad Nurul Alam
Incharge- Logistics

Mr. Jainul Abdin

Incharge- Information & Communication Technology

Md. Abu Sayed Sarker, Company Secretary (Acting)

Development & Marketing

Executive General Manager (E.G.M)

Mr. Farid Ahmed Sarker

Mr. Golam Zakaria Mandol

Mr. M.A Jalil

Mr. A.B.M Mohiuddin Bablu

Mr. Mohammad Mesbahuz Zaman
Mr. Md. 5chrab Hossain

Mr.Md. Kamal Hossain

Mr. 5.M Hossain

Senior General Manager (5.G.M)

Mr. Masharof Hossain Khondakar
Mr. Gias Uddin Majumder
Mr. Md. Abdul Bari

Ir. Md. Mohibur Rahman
Mr. Md. Ali Ahmed Talukdar
Mr. Bashir uddin Maolla

Mr. Rasul Amin Arif

Mr. Md. Anowar Hossain
Mr. Md. Mahfuz Khondokar
Mr. Md. Mahbub

Mr. Md. Moksed Al

Mr. Md. Mojibul Haque
Mr.Md. Abdullah Al-Mamun
Mr.Rahmat Wlah

Mr. Ziaul Huda Farugui

Mr. Md. Monijil Mia

Mr.Md. Sabjul Alam
Mr. Md. Nasir Uddin

Mr. Abul Hasan

Mr.Md. Moshiur Rahman
Mr.Md. Anowar Hossain
Mr.Shak Mohammad
Mr.Md. Abdus Sobhan
Mr.Md. Badrul Islam Khan
Mr.Md. Omar Fareque
Mr.Md. Soriful Istam Khan
Mr. Abu Saleh

Mr.Md. Moshur Alam Monna
Mr. Nasir Uddin

Mr.Md. Zakir Hossain
Mr. Md. Nazrul Islam

Mr. Kazi Sagir Ahmed

Mr. Md. Abu Bakor Siddik
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Message from the Chairman

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim

Assalamu Alaikum Wa Rahmatullah.

Dear Shareholders,

It is my great privilege and honor to welcome you all to the
20th Annual General Meeting and present the Annual Report
along with the Audited Financial Statements of Padma Islami
Life Insurance Limited (PILIL) for the year ended 31 December
2019,

Valued Shareholders,

| am very glad to inform you that 2019 was the first full year of new Board's activities as it was
reconstituted in October 2018. At that time the Company was facing a lot of high risks and
extreme challenges. Those were, among others, declining business, severe liquidity crisis, huge
unsettled claims, overstaffing, wanton mishandling of assets, mismanagement etc. which led
the Company to lose its market share in the life insurance industry of Bangladesh.

By the grace of Allah SWT, Year 2019, the first year under new Board’s management brings
attributable change, sustainable progress and alluring presence in the peer industry over-
coming all those adversities one after another. Premium collection during the year was Tk.
66.21 crore as against Tk.58.87 crore in 2018 posting a growth of 12.50% in 2019.0n the other
hand, management expenditure was reduced with a concerted effort by 34.85% from Tk.
39.13 crore in 2018 to Tk. 25.48 crore in 2019. During the year, we have paid Tk. 68.75 crore in
settlement of claims.

In view of our last year's commitment our endeavor was to establish a positive organizational
transformation through structural changes, policy improvement, operational and financial
control measures, rationalizing manpower requirement, closure of perennially loss making
Branches, augmentation of agency network, implementation of online integrated full-
featured ERP software, and above all payment of outstanding claims. The Board, in coopera-
tion with management have so far been successful to implement the above mentioned steps
substantially to bring life back to the company. Going forward, these exercises are intended to
continue relentlessly, Insha-Allah.

Dear Friends,

The new Board is determined to continue the business of Padma Islami Life Insurance Ltd.
with utmost honesty and transparency within the purview of ethical, Shariah and legal frame-
work as we try to accelerate growth in our key focus areas, while continuing to serve our
customers with high-quality and value-based, delusion & hassle-free insurance products and
services.
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The top priorities of the Board at this time are to settle legitimate outstanding claims, optimize
operational costs and ensure control at all levels of the Company's affair effectively. To this end
the Board and the professional management team have been working tirelessly to attain a
robust and noticeable business result.

Valued Owners,

You all know that the recent surge of the global pandemic of the Corona virus has already
caused, without exception, havoc to the lives of people and economies of the entire world,
particularly smaller economies like ours resulting in thousands of deaths and a near-total shut
down of all economic activities. It will, therefore, be prudent to take a cautious estimation of
the affect this pandemic and other acts of God (e.g.flood, locust etc.) will have on our business
in time to come.

By all estimation, the positive premium and investment income growth in 2019 for most insur-
ers cannot be maintained in 2020; particularly life insurers will face the complex and negative
economic and social implications of COVID-19.The COVID-19 outbreak has also had a knock-
on effect on financial markets and this will adversely affect the investment perfarmance of life
insurers in 2020.

According to the global business giants, keeping existence will be the most desired goal of
the players in corporate world. With the help of Aimighty Allah SWT, we are not pessimistic, we
hope to move forward to achieve company’s goal in cooperation with all concern. | thank you,
our valued owners, for your kind support and for reposing your confidence on us to lead your
company towards a bright future.

My Friends,

We are determined to establish corporate governance, discipline, integrity, transparency and
management accountability in your Company. We always welcome your prudent views,
suggestions and guidance as owners of the Company for better management.

| would like to extend our sincere thanks and deep appreciation to Insurance Development &
Regulatory Authority, Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Dhaka & Chittagong Stock
Exchanges for their wisdom, continued guidance and cooperation during this critical time.

Finally,| am endlessly grateful to Allah Jaojal for everything and thankful to my colleagues for
their sincere effort and invaluable stewardship of the Company since their appointment to
the Board. On behalf of the Board and on my personal behalf, | would like to express my
sincere thanks to all of our employees, clients, suppliers and other stakeholders for providing
their continuous valuable support in achieving our corporate goals.

May Allah SWT protect us all.

AL

Professor N R M Borhan Uddin, Ph.D.
Chairman of the Board
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,

Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), welcome you
to the 20th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your continued patronage and
support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual Report along with the Auditors'

Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December 2019 for kind consideration
and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Begulations, Notifica-
tions, etc.issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant disclosures and explana-
tions pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance along with the details of the
business performance, operations and achievements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

In fact, the year 2019 is very significant for the company in terms of performance, achievements and a new
constructive transformation in all sphere of the company.

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

According to the "World Insurance Report’ published by Swiss Re, a very large international reinsurer, global
premiums collection grew in 2019 steadily at just below 3% in real terms. In comparison, Life sectar growth
was a bit sluggish at 2.2%, although stronger than the 1.5% average of the previous 10 years. In view of
above scenario, PILIL has achieved a commendable growth of 12.45% in collection of premium in 2019.

However, according to the estimate made by Swiss Re, the COVID-19 pandemic:
- will spark the deepest recession since the 1930s,
will contract global gross domestic product (GDP) by around 4% in 2020,
- will lead to a slump in demand for insurance in this year and next, more so for life.
- will slow life premium growth by 4.5% this year and next, leading to 1.5% aggregate market contraction
- will hit hard group and individual savings business because of rising unemployment and falling incomes

1

The profitability of life insurance sector will face tougher challenges for:

- probable losses in invested assets caused by rising corporate defaults.

- Declining sales and fee income due to restricted in-person interactions on account of the
lockdown measures imposed to contain virus spread
However, they also forecast that combined life premiums written will recover to above pre-pandemic
levels over the course of 2021, a strong and optimistic outcome given the severity of this year's recession.

By the grace of Allah SWT, we pray and hope that, COVID-12 will be removed very soon and we will be able
to overcome the adverse impacts of the pandemic very early.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with correspanding figure of
2018 is presented below:

Rarticylars {In crzut:::?!'aka] {in crz:rliﬁakaj ln:::j‘Ei::;maﬂ
First year premium: 13.16 8.27 60%
Ekok Bima 10.86 6.80 60%
DPS (Khudra Bima) 2.30 1.47 65%
Renewal Premium 45.98 47.08 -2.5%
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Ekok Bima 40.36 39.07 4%
DPS (Khudra Bima) 5.62 8.00 -30%
Group Insurance Premium; 7.05 3.51 100%
.Grass Premium 66.21 | 58.87 12.50%
Life Fund 20.97 45.39 -55%
Claims settlement 68.75 106.59 -37%
Management Expenses 25.48 39.13 -34.85%
Commission to Insurance Agents 4.60 5.94 -23%
Allowances & Commission
(Other than Commission included above) 455 152 0%
Administrative & other expenses 18.33 31.23 -42%

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate statement
under title “Performance of the PILIL at a glance” Some highlights are given in items below;

Amount in Lac Taka

Particulars 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
First year Premium 1,316.71 827.52 4,213.28 5,302.04 5,285.70
Renewal Pramium | 4-598.48 4,708.30 6,463.93 7,950.88 8,952.99
Group Insurance 705.88 351.99 175.92 53.33 113.97
Premium

G Pesatiic 6,621.09 5,887.82 | 10,853.20 | 13,306.25 14,356.66
Investment 696.51 796.69 726.79 1003.86 1,668.61
Income

Bt 6,875.24 | 10,659.53 | 19,282.27 | 11,455.15 8,732.04
‘Management

Expenses:

a) Commission 714.81 777.25 1,834.24 2,543.19 2,918.66
b) Admin 1,833.09 3,123.97 3,858.20 4015.67 3,815.15
Expenses

P 22,388.77 | 22,386.66 | 23,894.04 | 33.,133.85 36,372.52
Life Fund 2,097.85 4,539.67 | 12,882.57 | 27,303.40 31,429.06
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Ciaims to Premium
(%)

102%

181%

177.66%

86%

61%

Management
Expenses to
Premium (%)

27.60%

67.56%

52.36%

49%

47%

MNet Operating
Cash Flow per
Share

(13.12%)

(17.20%)

(20.15%)

(8.34%)

4.16%

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA
Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 315t December, 2019 stood at Tk. 20.97 crore as against Tk.45.39 crore
in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to maturity of significant
amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase gradually by virtue of building up

Investment Portfolio:

consequential margin expected to be achieved from the initiatives taken so far.

The Investment of the Company for the year of 2019 was Tk. 136.13 crore. The comparative statement of
the last five years'investment is given below:

Particulars 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Fixed Deposit 4.06 8.32 8.60 19.22 93.95
Investment on  Govt. 20.77 31.77
Securities, Bond & Mutual 59.67 90.16 46.56
Fund
Share& Debenture 10.96 B6.81 3.26 5.61 4,75
Land, Building & others 90.34 91.08 96.77 95.14 104.10

Total: 136.13 137.98 | 168.30 210.13 249.36

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. Specially,
Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its management.

Impaortantly, risk management is a central part of the PILILS strategic management focus. PILIL's risk man-
agement objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, documented, man-
aged and controlled appropriately.

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management system
which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk accurrence, and also helps us create a
library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive advantages.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2019,

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall within the
term 'related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the related party trans-
actions has been disclosed under item no.30 of the notes to the financial statements.
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DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLICISSUES,
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2019, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL PER-
FORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the financial
results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature,

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only Meeting
Attendance Fee. During the year 2019, a total amount of BDT 11,04,000 was given to the Directors as
Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2018 the amount was BDT 15,77,900,

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places befare you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and
changes inequity;

{ii} Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

{ili} Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the financial state-
ments and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

{iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the financial statements;
{v) As required by cendition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEOQ, CC) and the Chief Finan-
cial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

{a) They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2019
and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

{i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

(i) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards and applicable laws

{b) There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company
during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violating the company's code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been implemented
and monitored effectively.

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COS0) framework for evaluating internal controlsin
the organization. The CO50 model defines internal control as “a process, effected by an entity's board of
directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance of the achieve-
ment of objectives in the following categories:

/  Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
/ Reliability of financial reporting
/ Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of such
controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through Internal, Exter-
nal, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is adequate and effective.

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution to wards improving the effectiveness of its systems
of internal contral. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to the Audit Committee and
the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system in the company.
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PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, or in the
interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS
PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.
COMPANY'’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a geing concern,
the following issues have been considered:

4 The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual abligations as they become due;
/' Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding debt;

v The level of PILILs realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses on
shareholders’ equity, and

/' Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL's risks and uncertainties have been made.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not propose any dividend for the year 2019 as no distributable surplus was available.

DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER CLAUSE 6(2) OF BSEC NOTIFICATION NO.:
SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/07/ADMIN DATED: 01.09.2020 REGARDING REASONS FOR THE
COMPANY’S FAILURE IN OPERATING AND PERFORMING PROFITABLY, IDENTIFY RESPON-
SIBLE PERSON, MEASURES TAKEN AND BUSINESS PLAN PROPOSED

As we have mentioned earlier, the present BoD was reconstituted on 21 Octeber 2018. At that time, the
Company was facing extreme challenges due to huge unsettied claims, severe liquidity crisis, customer
dissatisfaction, reputational issues and declining business, etc. In such a situation, the outgoing owners
transferred ownership to the present owner and the new Board took the control,

After taking over the charge, the BoD tried to identify the specific reasons and persens responsible for
such situation. It found that poor business and investment strategies, excessive management cost, over-
staffing, inefficiency and dishonesty of some employees, mismanagement, wanton mishandling of assets,
poor IT infrastructure, absence of integrated software and lack of governance were the key reasons.In the
process it also identified a number of persons responsible far that situation.

After identifying the specific reasons and persons responsible, The BoD has immediately taken appropri-
ate corrective measures- some of them are ongoing. It has

- Given its best effort primarily in arranging fund for payment of outstanding claims. It has so far
paid off tk. 153 crore in outstanding claim up to August 2020 from Octaber 2018.

- Formulated effective strategies for boosting up revenue and market penetration, specially
through shifting its business focus on group insurance,

- Established ‘one-stop customer service' to provide expedited services and quick redress of griev-
ances to regain the customer satisfaction.

= Directed its tremendous effort to install full-featured integrated ERP software for business process
automation.
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Shut down a number of recurrently loss making Units and thus reduced the management cost to
a great extent.

Right-sized the number of employees by rermoving dishonest, inefficient but highly paid employ-
ees at the same time recruiting and upgrading efficient and skilled employees.

- Reduced the usage of office space in Head Office and Units using the spaces optimally and thus
reduced the cost materially.

Also reduced the number of cars used by the staff and in pool and saved huge costs.

Reengineered most of the core business processes mainly through introduction of computerized
system and automation for eliminating redundancies in resource utilization e.g. time, cast, staff etc.

= Strengthened risk management and control system and corporate governance through imple-
mentation of ERM Framewaork, and COS0 Framewaork for Internal Control.

In addition to the above measures taken by the BoD, it has also taken legal measures against dishonest
employees identified embezzling the fund of the Company. As of now 34 nos. of litigations are ongoing
against them and two are imprisoned and a substantial amount of embezzled money has already been
recovered.

As a result of the measures taken, Premium collection during the year reached Tk. 66.21 crore as against
Tk. 58.87 crore in 2018 recording a growth of 12.50% in 2019 and group insurance revenue has been
increased almost 100% over last year. On the other hand, management expenditure was reduced with a
strenuous effort by 34.85% from Tk.39.13 crore in 2018 to Tk. 25.48 crore in 2019. Also, as part of fulfilling
our primary commitment, we have paid off Tk.68.75 crore in settling overdue claims in the year 2019,
BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2020

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its business plan
and strategy for survival and growth. As, due to restricted in-person interactions on account of the
lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that premium income against
Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently despite all possible measures.

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS)
insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan redirects
company’s major efforts and focus on 'Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to increasing sale of employees’
life insurance schemes, to bring Banks' depositors and investors of some specific categories under group
life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. Agreement with

corporate clients (e.g. banks, financial institutions and other corporate entities) has already increased
manifold. As mentioned above, group insurance revenue has been increased almost 100% over last
year.

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of resources. We
are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost and make the
business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance company,
Insha-Allah.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the Directors in
the Board Meetings is placed as under;

No. Name of Directors Position (hekt | AdEnded
01 | Professor N R M Borhan Uddin Ph.D Chairman 08 08

(Representative of Pavilion
International Ltd.)

02 | Dewan Nurul Islam, FCA, MBA \ice Chairman 08 07
(Representative of Crest Holdings
Ltd.)

03 | Mr. Humayun Bokhteyar, FCA, ACPA Director 08 08
(Representative of Unitex LP Gas Ltd.)

04 | Md. Zahirul Islam (Representative of Director 08 06
Unitex Petroleum Ltd.)

05 | Mrs. Zaman Ara Begum Director 08 07
(Representative of Affinity Assets Ltd.)

v Dr. Md. Nurul Aktar Chowdhury lnde_pendent o8 07

Director

o7 Dr. Mohammad Nayeem Abdullah 1nde5pen§ent 08 o8

B Director | [

(] . Independent 08 D&
Professor Dr. Serajul Hoque Director

09 Independent 08 07

Md. Belal Hussain, FCA

Director
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2019 is as under:
Share Comments
. Directors N, 18 holding
No. shares held
Ratio

OL. | professar N R M Borhan Uddin Ph.D
(Representative of Pavilion International Ltd.)

02 | Dewan Nurul Islam, FCA, MBA (Representative
of Crest Holdings Ltd.)

03 | Mr. Humayun Bokhteyar, FCA, ACPA
(Representative of Unitex LP Gas Ltd.)

28,10,720 | 7.23%

26,98,120 6.94%

30,953,600 7.96%

04 | pmd. Zahirul Islam (Representative of Unitex

Petroleurmn Ltd.) 25,32,780 6.51%

05 | Mrs. Zaman Ara Begum (Representative of
Affinity Assets Ltd.)

06 | Dr. Md. Nurul Aktar Chowdhury (Independent
Director)

007 | Dr. Mohammad Nayeem Abdullah
{Independent Director)

08 | Professor Dr. Serajul Hogue

(Independent Director)

09 | Md. Belal Hussain, FCA

(Independent Director)

Total: 1,35,26,540 | 34.79%

23,88,320 6.14%

1,000 =

1,000 -

1,000 =

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal
Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & shareholders holding 10% or more

Sl. Particulars No. of shares Shareholding Comments
o, held Ratio
b.1 | Directors/Executives 1,35,26,540 34.79%
b. 2 | Chief Executive Officer il
b. 3 | Chief Financial Officer Nil ~
b.4 | Head of Internal Auditor Nil .
" b.5 | Company Secretary Kiil
E i
c xecutives kil .
d Shareholders holding 10% or
more voting rights Nil
Total: 1,35,26,540 34,79%
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RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:

In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors shall retire
by rotation from office at the 20th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

i. Mr. Dewan Nurul Islam, FCA, MBA
ii. Mr.Humayun Bokhteyar, FCA, ACPA

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election,

Public Shareholder Directors:

In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’
Director has been published in the 2 {two) national Dailies, but no nomination papers were received from
the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:

As per the BSEC's Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) of the
total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (i) Independent
Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the shareholders in the
Annual General Meeting (AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a
period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

Accordingly, the Board of Director of PILIL appainted 4 (four) Independent Directors and such appoint-
ments have subsequently been approved by the shareholders in the last AGM. Therefore, no independent
director needs to be appointed in this AGM.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS
Financial Auditor:

The Company's statutory auditors Kazi Zahir Khan & Co, Chartered Accountants, shall retire in the 20th
Annual General Meeting and are eligible for reappointment. Since the said auditor is interested for reap-
pointment for the year 2020, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation of Audit Committee for re-
appointment at a remuneration of BDT 1,20,000 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before
the 20th AGM for kind approval.

Compliance Auditor:

Shafiq Basak & Co, Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the year 2019,
Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 2020, the BoD
has endarsed the recommendation of Audit Committee for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 25,000 including
income tax and the matter is placed before the AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and implementing
them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other stakeholders. The Company
has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC natification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03,2018, A certificate of Compliance required under the said Guidelines, as
provided by Shafiq Basak & Co,, Chartered Accountants, is annexed in the Annual Report 2019.
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Audit Committee:

The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of the
Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles and
policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s
notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. The Audit Committee
reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st December, 2019 audited by
the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):

In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 2018
issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance Ltd. formed a
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or accountable to the Board
and to the Shareholders of the Company. One meeting of NRC was held during the year 2019,

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended separately,

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY'S POSITION AND OPERATION
Services to Policyholders:

The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality service
to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and launched a
One-stop Service center. Additionally, the company has settled and paid off Survival Benefit up to the
certain amount from Zonal Head Quarter to expedite services to the Policyholders. During the year, the
Company has settled Maturity & Claims of significant amount tetaling to Tk. 68.75 crores.

Human Resource Practices:

PILIL is committed 1o providing equal opportunities 1o all employees, irrespective of their gender, race,
nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in its employees,
These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working arrange-
ments, promotion and performance appraisal. Qur corporate goal is to improve staff engagement by
measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra effort to achieve
business success.

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength of
our people for our organization's success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as their satis-
faction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through our
succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure ongoing
success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the company at the end
of 2019 was 592.

Information Technology:

Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance Companies
in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services, Recognized this fact the Board has
adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.
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ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services, The
highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing the
company’s online integrated full-featured (Enter) ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network (LAN)
and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

The Directors are sincere (o discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of discharging
corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been sponsoring various
welfare activities, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its inception.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | take this unique opportunity to thank all our honorable Sharehold-
ers, Directars, our valued policyholders and Managing Director & CEO (CC), all employees of our Company
for their continued support & co-operation. | also express my sincere gratitude to our Members of Shariah
Board, the Office of the Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority, Concerned Ministries, Registrar
of Joint Stock Companies & Firms, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, Office of Dhaka &
Chittagong Stock Exchanges, our Bankers and other esteemed well-wishers for their tremendous co-
operation, support & confidence.

On behalf of Board of Directors,

A LD

Prof.N R M Borhan Uddin, Ph.D
Chairman, Board of Directors
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SHAFIQ BASAK & CO.

CHATTOGRAM OFFICTE: - " , : DHAKA OFFICE -(1):
Watsonal Flouse (1% oo, B —— Shambdi Centee (G & St Flaor],
1|:th:.' Agrahd nr.mnﬂcm A r;u. L‘n:unn: 2m, lm:r] chlgmu er
Hogram - nglnies, Shafiqul Tslam, FCA Fakirupool, Mo , Dbk
Phone - 8803171 1561 ; % Phoee : BH.02-TE4ET0
H‘n'F:l R0 | TEIRRD E'Hm_pﬂli Fumar Basak, FCA Phodte © K02 T192008
‘i-'mbt S peme il Lol cxidil Sarwar Mahmood, FOCA Wi wiww
O Bt oasah Sheilch Zahidul Islam, MBA, FCA e et gk cots”

We heve examined the compliance status to the Corporate Govermance Code by Padma |slami Life Insurance
Limited for the yesr ended on 31 December 2018 This Code relates to the Notficstion Mo
BSEC/CMRRCD/2008-158/207/8dmin80, dated 3 Junz 2018 of the Bangladesh Securties snd Exchange
Pl

Such compuance with the Corporate Governance Coce is the responsibilty of the Company, Our Examination
was bmited fo the procedures and Implementation thersof a5 adapted by the Management in ensuring compliance
ta the conditions of the Corperate Governance Code.

This is & scruting and vedfication and an independent gudit on compliance of the conditons of the Corporate
Gevernance Code as well as the provisions of relavant Bangladash Sacrefaral Standards (BSS) as adapted by
Institute of Chartered Sacretares of Bangladesn (ICSB) in.se far 23 those starderds ame nat inconsistent with any
conddion of this Corporate Govemnance Code.

VWi slate thal we have obteined &l the informaiion and expianatons. which we heve requied, =nd- afier due
scrutiny and verification thereod, we report thal, in our opinion’

tal The Company has complled with the conditions of the Cerporate Governance Code 25 stipulated in the
ahove mentioned Comorate Govemance Code issued by the Commission;

(b} The company has complied witn the provisions of the relevan! Bangladesh Secrstanal Standards (BSS) as
adopied by the institue of Chanered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICS8) as required By this Code;

{6} Proper books snd records have been kept by the company as required under the Comaanies Act 1984, the
securiies laws and other relevant laws. and

{d] The govemancs of the company s sallsfaciary

s

Place: Dhaka Md. Shafiqul istam, FCA
Daled: Septerber 03, 2020 Partner
SHAFIO BASAK & CQ,
Chartered Accountants

FESFIRTENT HETE ST DA OFFICE (23 Hoose - 42 { |52 Fioor), Road - 01, Block - A, Nicetan, Gulshan - 01, Tihaka,
ABACUS Phone : §8-02-9850602-3, 01819-285196, E-muil.mahmoods.bd @ gmail vom
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Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited
For the year ended 31st December 2019
STATUS OF COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission vide
notification Mo, SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018 issued under section 2CC of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 is presented below:

Compliance status
in the appropriate
Condition Title il column) w fif
Complied Not
Complied
| 1 Board of Directors
111) Size of the Board of Directors: The tolal number of members of 2 v Total 59 (Nina)
gompany’s Baard of Directars {hereinafier refermed 1o as “Board’) shal ot Board
be iess than 5 (five) and more than 20 (hwenty). Members

|1 Independent Directors
12 {a) | Al least one fith (1/5) of the tatal number of directors in the company's v
board shall be independent diractors,

162} () i) For Ihe purpose of this clawse ‘indepandent dirsctor’ means a direclor)
who gither does not fokd any share in the company o folds less than one ¥
parcent | 1%) shares of the total paid-up shares of the company

1) E | Who s not @ sponser of the company or s pot connected wilh the
company’s any sponsor or director or nominated director or sharehalder of
the company or any of its associates, sister concems, subsidanes and
parents or holding enfities who holds one parcent {1%) cr more shares of o
the fotal paid-up shares of the company on the basis of faméy relationship
and his or her family members atso shall not hold above mentioned shares
in the company,

Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister, son-in-
tzw and dauahter-in-law shall be considered as family members,

H2){bliii} | Wha has not been an exacutive of the company in immediately precading v
2 {fwa) financial years;

142} (b)iv) | Wheodoes not have any ofher relabonship. whether pecundary or otherwise, f’
with the company or ils subsidiary or associaled companies.

12){oiiv) | Who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Enitlernent Certiicate) v
holder, direclor or efficer of any slock exchanags;

123 Bl | Whais nod a sharsholder, director excepling independent director or officer v

of any member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an infermediary of
the capital markal,

12} ibjivily | Who iz not a pariner or an executive or was nod a pariner or an executive o
during the preceding 3 {heee) years of the concarmed company’s stalutory
audit firn or audit firm engaged m ntemal audit services o audit firm
conducling special audd or professional certifying compliance of this Code;
1(2) (b){vis) | Wha s not independent director in more than 5 (five) sted companies;
1(2}bHix) | Who has not been convicled by a cour of competent jurisdiction as a
dafauller in payment of any laan or any advance to a bank or a Non-Bank
Financial Instution (NBFTT; and

We){bhix) | Who has not been convicled for a criminal offence involving moral v
lurpilude;

2y e The independant direclor(s) zhall be appointad by the Board and approved
by the sharehalders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM); v

s
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1i2)(i 4)

@) five

163)

the post of independent direciors) can not remain vacant for mare than 80

ey . .

The tanure of office of an independent director shall be for a period of 3
{three) years. which may be extended for 1 (one) tenure only:

Provided that a former independent director may be consdered for
reappainiment for andther tenure after a fime gap of one tenure, ia., three

| years from his of her complafion of consecutive twa tenures [ie. six years]:

lelﬂuﬂnn ul'lrl:kpeud:ﬂ Director,

1(3)a)

i

Independent director shall be & knowledgeable individual with integrty whao
I abe lo ensure complance with financial laws, reguiatory requirements

| and corporate aws and can make meaningful contribution 1o the business,

Inﬁepmm ﬂlmﬁnrmu have rulll:wmg qualmcallm

| Business Leader who is of was a promoter or director of an unlisted

company having minimum paid-up capdal of Tk 100.00 milion or any
listed company or & member of any national or infemational chamber of

| commarce or business assaciation; or

‘Corporale Leader who is or was a top level executive not Iower than Chiel
Execulive Officer or Managing Director or Deputy Managing Director or
Chisf Financial Officer or Head of Finance or Accounts or Company
Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and Compliance or Head of Legal
Service or a candidate with equivalent position of an unisted company
having minimum paid up capdal of Tk 100.00 mélion or of a listed
company; of

NIA

MiA

i}

Former official of government or statutory or autcnomous or regulatory
body in the posdtion not belaw Sth Grade of the national pay scale, who has
al leas! educational background of bachelor degree in econamics or
EOMMENcE of busingss or faw, or

NIA

{iv}
(0]

University Teacher who has educational background in Economics or

| Commerce or Busingss Studias or Law; or

" Prafessional who is or was an advocate practicing al leasl in the High
Cowrt Division of Bangladesh Suprema Court ar.a Charered Accountant or
Cost and Management Accountant or Charterad Financial Analyst or
Gharterad Certified Accountant o Certified Public Accountant or Chartered
Management  Accounlant o Charlered  Secrelary or  aquivalend
gualification;

13)ie)

The independent director shall have at least 10 {fen) years of experiences
in any fiald mentionad In clausa (B},

T3Hd)

In special cages, the above qualifcalions or sxperiences may be relaxed
subiect to prior approval of the Commission.

Mane

114

Duatity of Chabrperson of the Board of Divectors and Managing
Director or Chief Executive Officer.

1i4Hal

The positions of the Chairparsen of the Board and the Managing Director
(MO} andior Chéef Executive Officer {CED) of the company shall be filled
by different individuals;

1idHb)
e}

The Managing Director (M) andlor Chief Execufive Officer {CEQ) of a

| isted company shall not hold the same positon in anothar isted company,

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among he non-
execulive directors of the company;

]

The Board shall chearly define respective mles and responsibdites of the
Chairperson and the Managing Director andior Chief Executive Officer,

Ti4He)

In the absence of the Chalmerson of the Board, the remaining members
may elect one of themselves from non-executive directors as Chairparsen
for that particular Board's mesting; the reason of absence of the regular
Chairpesson shall be duly recorded in Ine meanutes,

(5}

The Directors” Report to Shareholders

The Board of the company shall include the following additional statements




o disclosures in the Directors” Report prepared under section 184 of the
Companias Act, 1954 {Act No. XVIN of 1584
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130

An mdustry outiook and possible future developments in (he ndustry;

{5

The segment-wise or product-wise performance:

Ty

A5

Risks and concems including Internal and extemal risk factors, threal lo
sustainability and negative impact on envirsnment, if any;

A discussion on Cosl of Goods sold, Gross Profil Margin and Nel Profil
Margin, where applicable;

NIA

163))

A discussion on confinuy of any extracedinary achiviies and their
implications {gain or loss);

Mane

1))

A defaled discussion on related parly fransacfions along with 2 statement
showing amourt, nature of related party, nature of fransactions and basis
of fransactions of all related party transactions;

Nore

TiBjvii)

# stalement of uiiizalion of proceeds raised ihrough public lsswes, righls
issues andior any other insfruments,

Mone

(G vl

An explanabon If tha financial resuits detenorate after the company goes
for fnitial Public Offering (IPC), Repeal Public Offering (RPO), Righls
Share Offer. Diract Lisling, ele.,

Naone

1(5)ii

An explanation on any significant variance that ocours bistwein Quarery
Financial performances and Annual Financial Statements;

Mone

significant
variance

15

A statement of remuneration paid to the dirsclors. including independant
directars;

50

A statament fhat the financial statemients preparsd by the management of
tha Issuer company present faily ds state of affairs, the resufl of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity,

{5

A statement thal peoper books of account of the issuer company have
been maintained,

(5l

A statement that appropriate accounting policies have bean consisenty
applied in preparation of the financial statements and that the accounting
esfimates are based on reasonable and prudent judamend,

1(5){xiv)

& statement that Intemational Accounting Standards {IAS) or Intemnational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), a5 applicable in Bangladesh, hava
been followed in preparation of the financial stalements and any departure
there from has been adequalely disciosed:

1(5Hx)

()]

A statement that the system of intemal control is sound in-design and has

| been effectively implemenied and moniiored:

L L L S L B e

A stalement that minority shareholders have been protected from abusive

actions by, or in the interest of controling sharsholders ackng sither
directty or indirectty and have effactive means of redress;

()i}

# statement that these is no significant doubt upon the issser company's
abillty to continue as a going concern, if the Issuer company is net
considered to be a going concern, he fact along with reasons there of shall
b diszlosed,

1[5}

An explanation that significant deviations from the last year's opesating
resulls of the issuer company shall be highlighted and the reasans thareal
shall be suplained:

1(5){x]

sl

A statement where key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5

| \five) years shall be summarized; |
An explanalion on he reasons Il the issuer company has not decared

dividend |cash or stock) for he year,

15}

Board's statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock divedend has
been or shall be deciared as Inferm dividend;

(8o

The total numbes of Baard mestings held during the year and attendance
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by each direcor;

1U5H#miii] A report on the pattern of sharsholding desclosing the aggregate number of

shares {along wilh name-wise details where stated balow) hald by;-

() Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and ofher related
pariies (name-wise cetais); o
() Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financlal
Officer, Head of Infemal Audit and Compliance and their spouses and
mmingr children (name-wise details).

¢} Executives; and

(d) Sharsholders holding len percent (10%) or mare voling infersst in the
GOMpEny (rame-wises delails);

(8] eaeiv) In case of the appoiniment or reappainiment of 2 dirscior, a disclosure on
e follewing information to the shareholders;- v
(a) a brief resumiz of the directar,

I} nature of his or her expertiss in specific funclional areas; and

(¢} namas of companias in which the person aiso holds the directarship

and the membership of commitlees of the Bogrd,

150w} [A Manegement's Discussion and Analysis signed by CED or MD v
prasanting detailed analysis of the company’s posiion and operations

along with & brief discussion of changss in the financial statements, among

others, focusing on;

1(5}xv) (a) | actounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statemants; v
1Sy (k) | changes in accounting policees and estimation, f any, clearly describing the v

affect on fnancial performance or results and financial posifion as well as
cash flows in ahsolute figure for such changes;

1(5l0ow) (e} | comparative analysis (ncluding affects of mfation) of financial performance v

or results and financial position as wall as cash flows for current financial
year with immediate preceding five years explaining rsasons theraof,
1(8Hnv) (d) | compare such financial performance or results and financial posifion as v

well 23 cash flows with the peer Indusiry scenaria;

1(5Hxxv) (e} | briefly explain tha financaal and economic scananio of the country and the ¥

lobs;

1i5Hm) {f) | risks and concems Issues related fo the financial statements. explaining v

such sk and concerns mitigation plan of the company; and

181w} lgy | future plancor projection o forecast for company's operation, performance v
and financiad postion, with justfication theresf, i.e., achssl posiion shall be

axplained to the shareholdars in the nest AGM;

15} | Declaration or cerificalion by the CED and the CFO o the Board as V'

required under condicn Mo, 3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A,

and
1(5)inni) | The report as well as certificate raganfing compliance of condiions of this v
Code as requied under condition Mo. 9 shall be disclosed as per
| Amnexure-B and Annexure-C. .
116} Meetings of the Board of Directors ; i

The company shall conduct it Board meelings and record the minules of
tne mestings as well as keep reguired bocks and records in line with the
provisions of the ralevan! Bangladesh Secrsfarial Standards (BSS) as
adopled by the Inshitute of Charlered Secretaries of Bangladesh (1058) in
&0 far as \hose standards are nol inconsistent with any condition of this
Code

17 Code of Concuet for the Chairperson, other Beard members and
Chief Executive Officer

1{Tiia) The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the v
reammandation of the Momnation and Remunesation Committes (NRE)
al condition Mo, & for the Chairperson of the Board, other board members
and Chief Exscutive Officar of Ihe company,
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1(7Hb)

Thie code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the
wabsite of the company including, among others, prudent conduct and
behavior; confidentiality; confiict of interest; compliance with laws, rules
and regulations, prohibiien of insider

trading; relationship with environment. empioyees, cuslomers and
suppliers; and independancy,

Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company,

Provisions refaling to the composition of the Board of the holding company |

shall be mada applicable to Ihe compasition of Ihe Beard of the subsidiary
company;

| Atleast 1 (one) Indzpendsnt directar on the Baard of the halding company |

shall ba a diractor on the Board of the subsidiary company,

Thiz minutes of the Board rneeﬁng of the whsidiary cormpary shall ha

| The minutes of e respective Board meefing of the hoiding company shail |
| st that they have reviewad the affais of the subsidiary company also; |

The Autit Commities of the huHIrbg compary shall also review (e financial
statements, n particular the investments made by the subsidiary company.

MNIA
NiA

Managing Director (MDY o Chief Execotive Officer (CEOW Chief
Financial Cficer
(CFO) Head of Imernal Aodit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company
Secretary (C8).-

3

11) Appaintment

3(THa)

The Board shali appoinl a Managing Direcior (MD) or Chief Execuive
Cfiicer (CEQ), 2 Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
and a Head of Intemal Audit and Compliance (HIAC),

3A1He)

The postions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chigf Exscutive Officer
{CED), Company Secretary (CS), Chisf Financial Officer (CFO) and Head
of Infenal Audit and Compiiance (HIAC) shall be filed by different
mcdividuas,

3{1)ie)

The MD oe CEQ, €8, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall nat hold
any execulive position in any ofher company al ihe same fime;

3(1Hd)

The Board shall dlearly dafing respeciiva roles, responsibiities and duties
of e CFQ, lhe HIAC and the CS;

1))

Tha WD or CEQ, C5, CFOD and HIAC shall not be removed from thair
pasiion without approval of fhe Board as well &5 immediale dissemination
{o the Commission and siock exchange(s),

32}

Requiremeni fo attend Board of Directors’ Meetings: The MO or CED,
C5, CFC and HIAC of the company shall aliend the meslings of (he Board:
Provided that the CS, CFO andior the HIAC shall not aliend swuch part of a
meating of the Board which invalves consideration of an agenda Mem
relating to their parsonal matters.

i)

3(3He)

| and Chiel Financial Officer (CFO) 1l
The MD or CEQ and CFQ shal :eﬁlnr to the Board that they have

Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chiel Executive Officer (CE(Y)

reviewed financial statements for the year and fhat to the best of their
knowledge and belish

{1} Ineze statements do not cortain any matenally untrue statement or omit
any matensl fact or contain stafements that might be misleading: and

{i) these statements togather prasant a true and fair view of the company's
affairs and zre in complignce with exisling accounling slandards and
applicabée tows;

33}ib]

The MD or CEQ and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the best of
knowledge and belief, no transactions entered imto by the company during
the vear which are fraudulent, ibegal or in vickaton of the code of conduct
for the company's Board or
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il members;
33z The certification of the MO or CEQ and CFO shall be disclosed in the v
Annual Regort,
4, Board of Directors” Committee.
For ensuring good governance in [ company, the Boasd shall have at o
lzas! following subcommiftees:
(i) Audit Committee; and
{ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committes.

§; Audit Committee.

51) Responsibility to the Board of Directors.
B{1)ia} The company shall have an Audit Commiltes as & sub-commithes of the v
Boarg,
S0k The Audit Commities shall assist the Board in ensuring that the financial v
staternents reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the comparny
and In ensuring & oond monitoring system within the business,
5(1ie) The Audii Commitiee shall be responsible fo-the Board; the duties of the v
| Audit Committee shall tredaary sat forth in '.-m’ung

5(2) Constitution of the Audit Committee
5(2)(a) The Audit Committee shall be composed of al feast 3 {tnree) members, v
5(2)b} | The Board shaf appoint members of the Audit Commities who shall be non v
executive direciors of the company excaplting Chalrperson of the Board
and shall includs at least 1 {one} independent director;

52 Al membars of the audit committes should be inancially ltsrate” and al v
least 1 {one} member shall have accounfing or related financial
management background and 10 {len) vears of such experience;

e When the term of service of any Commiltee member expires or there is v
any circumslance causing any Commitize member to be unable 1o hald
office before expiration of the term of sarvice, thus making the number ol
the Committes members to be lower fhan ihe prescribed number of 3
{Inrea) persons. the Board shall appaint the new Committes membar to fill
up the vacancy immediately or not later than 1 {one} monih from the date
of vacancy in the Commitiea {0 ensuré conlinuity of the performance of

work of the Audit Committes;
S2ie) Tre company secrefary shall act as the secrefary of the Commitiee; ¥
Si2f The quorurn of the Audit Committes meafing shall not constitute without at v

tedst 1 (one) independent desitin,
5(3) Chairperson of the Audit Commitiee

§{3)a) The Board shal select 1 (one) member of the Audit Commitiee to be v
Chairperson of tha Audil Commithze, who shall ba an independent director,
B{3)ib) In the ahsence of the Chaimpersan of the Audil Commitizs, the remaining v

membérs may elecl one of themsalves ag Chaiperson for that particular
meetng, in that cass there shall be no problem of consbiuling a quarum &3
required under condibien No. 5{4)(b) and the reason of absance of the regular
Chairperson shall be duly racorded in the minutes.

H3ie) Chairparson of the Audit Commitie shial remain prasent In the Anaual General v
Meating (AGEM):

Provided that in ahsenca of Chiaiparson of the Audit Commitioe, any othar
member Fam (he Aufll Commilies shed be seleclad to be present n the anmsl
qeneral mesting (AGM) and reason for absence of the Charperson of he Audd
Comimities shall ba racarded in the minutes of fhe AGM,

5id) Meeting of the Audit Committee
Hdiial The Audit Committes shall conduect at least its four meetings in a financal v
year
Provided that any emergency meeting in addilian lo regular mesting may
bie conmvened at the request of any one of the members of the Commiftes,
5[] The quosum of the meeting of the Audit Cammitiee shall be congtituted in v
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presence of efher two members o two third of the members of the Audit
Committes, whichaver I8 higher, where pressnce of an independanl
diractor i a must

5(8) Role of Audit Commitice

The Audit Committes shall.-
S(5Hal Owersee Ihe financial reporting process; v
5(5Hb) menitor choice of accounting policies and principles: v

5(5jie) monilor Inermal Audil and Compliance process to ensure fhal it 5 v
adequately resourced, inciuding approval of the Intemal Audit and
Compliance Plan and review of the Intemal Audit and Compliance Report;

5(5Hd) oiverses hinng and performance of extermal auditors; v

5(GHe) hold meeding with the extemal or siatutory auditors for review of the annual v
financial statements before submission fo the Board for approval or
adoption;

55 review along with the management. the annual financial statements befare v
submission {0 the Board for approval,

5(5Hg) review along with the managemest, the quarterly and haff yearly financial v
statements before submission to the Board for appeoval,

5(5}{h) review the adequacy of internal audit function; v

{51 rewiew Ihe Management's Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the v
Annual Report;

(800 review staternent of all mlated parly transactions submitted by the v
managemant,

5i5)k) review Management Letters or Letter of Intarnal Control weakness issved v
by statuiory auditors;

(50 oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, v

level of experise deployed and time required for effeciive audit and
evaluate the performance of external auditors, and

5(5)(m) oversea whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offening (PO IR
of Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer have been utilzed
as per the purposes siated n relevant offer document or prospectus
approved by the Commission:

Si6) Reporting of the Audii Committee

5iBHa) Reporting to the Board of Divectors

SiB){a)] | The Audit Committes shall report on fls aclivities 1o the Board. v
S{BMa)in | The Audit Committee shiallimmediataly report to the Board on the following
findings, if any:-
SIENa)EN ) | reporion conflicls of inferasls, Mane

SiENa)(E)b) | suspected or presumed fraud or imegularty or material defect dentified In Nane
the infernal audit and compliance probass or in the financial statemens;

Siia)yic) | suspected infingement of laws, requlatory compiances including Nanie
securities refated laws, rules and reguiations; and

S(BHa)imid) | any miher matter which the Audit Commities deems necessary shall be Mane
disclosed fo the Board immediately;

B(E ) Reparting fo the Authorities: [f the Audit Commitiee has reporied fo the Maone
Board about anything which has material impact on the financial condition
and results of operafion and has discussed with the Board and the
managament that any rectification is necessary and if the Audi Committes
finds thal such rectification has been unveasonably ignored. the Audit
Committes shall report such finding to the Commission, upon reporting of
such maiters 1o the Board for Ihree times or completion of a period of 6
{six) months from the date of first reporting fo the Board, whichever &
arlies,

57} Reporting W the Sharcholders and General Invistors: Report on v
acfivities carmied out by the Audit Committee, including any report made to
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the Board under conddtion No. 5(&}a)(ii) above during the year, shall be
signed by the Chairperson of Ihe Audit Committee and disclosed in the
annual repart of the lssuer company.

i Nomination and Remuneration Commitlee (NRC).-

61 Responsibility to the Board of Directors

B(1)al The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneralion Committze v
{NRC) a8 a subcommittee of the Baard,

8(11h) The NRC shall assist the Board in farmulation of the nomination crileris or v
policy for determining qualifications, positive atinbutes, experences and
independence of dirsctors and fop level execulive a5 well a3 & palicy for
formal process of consideding remuneraion of dirsclors, top level

axetutive,

Bit)ic) The Terms of Referance (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in v
writing covering the areas siatad al the condition Mo. 6{51(b).

6(2) Constimgion of the NRC

8(2Kal The Commities shall comprise of al lzasl thres members including an ¥
independent direcior;

B(2Hh) All members of the Commillze shall be non-sxecutive directors; ¥

Biic) Mambers of the Commitiza shall be nominated and appointed by tha ¥
Board,

B(2)d) The Board shall have autharly to remove and appaint any member of the v
Commithes;

BilZHz) In case of death, resignation, disqualdication, or removal of any member of Mone

the Commitles or in any clher cases of vacancies, (he board shall il the
vacancy within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in
the Cammitles;

B{2)(f) The Cnalperson of the Commiltee may appaint or co-opl any extemal expert Nonie
andior mamber(s) of stalf o the Committes a5 advisor who shad be nen-vnling
mamber, if the Chairparson feels that sdvice or suggestion from such extemal
awpert andior membarls] of siafl shall be required or valuable for the Commilies,

B 2Hg) The company secratary shall act as the secretary of the Committes, v

B2Kh) The quorum of the NRC meeting shadl not canstitute without attendance of v
at least an independent director,

B{2)(1 Mo member of the NRC shall recedvs, efther diectiy or indirectly, any v
remuneration for any advisory of consultancy rols or otherwise, odher than
Direcior's fees or honorarium from the comoany.

B(3) Chairperson of the NRC

B(3)(a) The Board shall sefect 1 (ong) mamber of the NRC to be Charperson of v
tha Committee, whi shall be an independant director;

B(3)b) In {he absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining membess ¥
may glect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular mesting,
the reason of absence of the requiar Chairpersan shall be duly recorded in

the minutes,

Bi2)e) The Chairpesson of the NRC shall atlend the annual general meeting v
{AGM)] to answer the queries of the shareholders:

B(d) Meeting of the NRC

B4}l The MRC shall conduct al least one mesting In & financial year, v

B(4)b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency mesfing wpon v
request by any member of the NRC,

Bi4)ic) The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be consbiluled in presence of v

gilher two members or wo thind of the members of the Committes,
whichever is higher, where presence of an indepandent diractor is must as
required under condition No.

B{2){h);

B(d)(d) The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded m the v
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minutes and such minutes shall be confirmed In the next mesting of the
NRC:

BiS) Role of the NRC

B{5)(a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or seeountzble to the Board v
and to the shareholders,

85110} NRC ehall ovesses, among othars, the following matters and make report v
with recommendation o the Board:

B30 formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, posifive atiibutes and ¥
independence of a director and recommeand a poficy to the Board, relating
to the remungration of the diractors, top level execulive, considering the
following:

B(SNEHIE) | the level and composition of remuneration & reasonable and sufficient in ¥
aftract, refain and motivate sulable direclors o run the company
suctassfutly,

B(5)iBHIE) | the relationship of remuneration lo perloemance is clear and mests v
appropnate performance banchmarks: and

B5)(Dlie) | remuneration to directorg, fop level execufive involves a baiance between v
fived and incentve pay reflecting shod and long-term pedormance
obsectives appropriate (o the working of the company and its goals;

B3 b)) devising a policy on Board's dwversity taking info corsiderabon age, v
gender, experience, ethnicity. educational background and nationality;
GiSyb)im) | Idenfifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may ba ¥
appainted in top level sxecutive positon in accordance with the criteria laid
down, and recommend their appoiniment and removal io the Board;
BSHbNv) | formulating the criteria for evakuation of parformance of independeant v
 directors and the Board, ! N I
B(5Hb)v) | idenlifying Ihe company's needs for employees al diferent fevels and v
determing Iheir gelection, fransfer or replacement and promobion crlera;
and
BiGHE)ivi) | developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company s human v
resources and fraining poficles;
83 The company shall discicse the nomination and remuneration poficy and ¥
the evalization criteria and actwdies of NRC during the year at a glance In
its annual reparl
7 External or Statutory Auditors.-
i1 Thi issuer company shall not engage its external o statutory auditors fo
perform the following services of the company, namely.-
T appraisal or valuation services or faimess opinions; ¥
THH) financial information systams design and implementation; v
T(1){m) bock-keeping or ofier services refated to the accounting records or ¥
financial sfatemants,
T(1){) broker-dealer services; v
T actuarial services, ¥
T(1) () internal audit services or specal audit services, ¥
(1)l any seryice [hal the Audit Committes delarmines; v
Tl aucit or certfication services on compliance of corporate govemance as v
required under condiion No. (1), and -
Ay oltver service that creates confict of inferest: v
T(1)x)
72 No partner or employees of the extemal audit firms shall possess any v

share of the company they audit al keasl during the tenure of their udit
assignment of that company; his or her Tamily members also shall nat hald
any shares in the sasd company:

Provided that spousa, son, daughler, father, mather, brother, sister, son-in-
law and daugher-in-law shall be considered as family mambers.
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T3 Representative of external or statulory auditors shiall remain present in the v
Shareholders' Maeling (Annual General Meeling or Exiracrdinary General
Meeling) to answer the quaries of tha shareholdars.

] Maintaining a website by the Company,
1) The company shall have an official websie linked with the website of the v
stock exchanga.

.

B3 The company shall keep the webeda funclional from the dale of isting.
B(3) The company shall make avallable the detalled disclosures on its website v
as required under the listing reguiations of the concemed stock
exchange(s),

4 Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance,

1) The company shall obtain a cerlficate from & practicing Professional v
Accouniant or Secretary (Chariered Accountant or Cost and Management
Accountant or Chartered Secatary) ofher than its stalutory auditors or
audit firm on yearly basis regarding comgliance of conditions of Carporate
Governance Code of the Commission and shall such certficaie shall be
dhenlosed in the Aanual Reporl,

82 The professional who will provide the cerificals on compliance of this b
Corporate Governance Codea shall be appointed by the shareholders in the
annual ganeral meeling,

8(3) The dwaciors of the company shall state, in accordance with the: Annexure ¥
attached, in the directors’ report whether the company has complisd with
these conditions.
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Annexure-A
[As per condition No. 1(5)(xxvi)]

Date: 27.07.2020

The Board of Directors

Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited
Head office: Padma Life Tower
Dhaka-1000.

Subject : Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st December 2019.

Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission's Notification No.
SEC/CMRCD2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03,2018 under section 2CC of the Securi-
ties and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited for the year ended on
31st December, 2019 have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting
Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Ban-
gladesh and any departure therefrom has been adequately disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a
prudent and reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair
view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company's state of affairs have been
reasonably and fairly presented in its financial statements;

{(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a
system of internal control and maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance
that the established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed;
and

(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern.
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In this regard, we also certify that:-

(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 31st December, 2019
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company's affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

(ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Com-

pany during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for
the company’s Board of Directors or its members,

Sincerely yours,

Md. Morshed Alam Siddiqui (Shakhawat Hossain)
Chief Executive Officer (C.C) Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
For the Year 2019

Pursuant to the Notification issued by BSEC on Code of Corporate Governance, the BoD of
PILIL formed the Audit Committee (the Committee) with its ToR as below:

' SI. | Name of Members Designation Committee

No. Status

01 | Mr. Md. Belal Hussain, FCA Independent Director Chairman

02 | Md. Zahirul Islam Director Member

03 | Mrs. Zaman Ara Begum Director Member

04 | Prof. Dr.Serajul Hoque Director Member

05 | Md. Morshed Alam Siddiqui Chief Executive Officer| Member
(C.Q

06 | Md. Abu Sayed Sarker Company Secretary Secretary
(Acting)

TOR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE :
Constitution of the Audit Committee

1. The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members, who shall be directors of
the company, including at least 1 (one) independent director.

2. The Board of Directors shall appoint members of the Audit Committee. It shall also select 1
{one) member, who shall be an independent director, to be its Chairman. Qualification of the mem-
bers shall conform to the requirements of the Corporate Governance Guidelines.

3. When the term of service of any member expires or there is any circumstance causing any
member to be unable to hold office until expiration of the term of service, thus making the number
of the members to be lower than 3 (three), the Board of Directors shall appoint new member(s) to
fill the vacancy(ies) immediately or not later than 1 {one) month from the date of vacancy (ies) to
ensure continuity of the performance of work of the Audit Committee.

4. The company secretary shall act as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.
Meetings of the Audit Committee

1. The meetings of the Audit Committee shall be presided over by its Chairman,

Meetings of the Audit Committee

1. The meetings of the Audit Committee shall be presided over by its Chairman.

2. The quorum of a meeting of the Audit Committee shall constitute by majority of members and
shall not constitute without at least 1 {one) independent director,

3. The Audit Committee shall hold at least 4 (four) meetings in a year to perform its duties and

responsbilities.

4. The Audit Committee may invite the Chief Executive Officer, Head of Internal Audit or any other
officials to attend the meeting.

5. The Audit Committee may request the internal and/or external auditors to submit
valuation/evaluation report(s) on any specific issue.
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6.

All the observations/findings/recornmendations of the Audit Committee shall be recorded in the
minutes of the Committee.

. The Secretary shall minute the proceedings and resolutions of all committee meetings, including

the names of those present and in attendance and shall circulate the minutes of meetings of the
Committee to all members of the Committee.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee:

1.

L~ L

=

The Audit Committee shall be responsible for the following:

To oversee the financial reporting process of the company.
To monitor choice of accounting policies and principles.

To monitor Internal Control and Risk management processes.
To oversee hiring (appointment) of external auditors.

To aversee the performance of external auditors.

To review, along with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.

To review, along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval.

To review the adequacy of Internal control and audit function.

To review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the management.

To review Management Letters/ Management Report/ Letter of Internal Control Weakness issued
by the statutory auditors.

To conduct a post-audit review of the audit findings including any significant suggestions for
improvements provided to management by the statutory auditors.

. The Audit Committee shall review whether all the applicable Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Moti

fications, Directives, etc. framed/issued by the regulatory authorities have been complied with.

The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board of Directors on the following
findings, if any:

i.  report on conflicts of interests;
ii. suspected or presumed fraud/ irregularity and material defect in internal control system;
iii. suspected infringement of laws, including securities related laws, rules and regulations;
iv. any other matter which shall be disclosed to the Board of Directors immediately.

The Audit Committee shall prepare a report on activities carried out by itself, including

reporting to the Board of Directors, during the year and disclose such report to the Share
holders and General Investors through the annual report of the company.
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REPORT ON ACTIVITIES CARRIED OUT BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

In discharging its duties and responsibilities, during the year 2019, the Audit Commit-

tee of PILIL:
1.Held a total of 05 (five) meetings. Attendance status was as below:
sl. Name of Members Designation Meeting Meeting
No. Held Attended
01 | Mr. Md. Belal Hussain, FCA Chairman 05 05
02 | Md. Zahirul Islam Member 05 05
03 | Mrs. Zaman Ara Begum Member 05 03
04 | Prof. Dr. Serajul Hoque Member 05 05
05 | Md. Morshed Alam Siddiqui Chief Executive 05 05
Officer (C.C)
06 | Md. Abu Sayed Sarker Company Secretary 05 05
(Acting)/Secretary
07 | CFO 05 05
08 | Head of Internal Audit 05 05

2. Reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements of 2019 and recommended for approval

3. Considered and made recommendation to the Board on the appointment and remuneration of
financial and compliance auditors;

4. Approved the Internal Audit Plan, monitored progress and effected revisions when necessary;

5. Discussed Internal Audit reports and findings in detail with auditors and members of Management.

On behalf of the Audit Committes

Tl

Md. Belal Hussain, FCA
Chairman of the Audit Committee, PILIL
Dated: July 29,2020
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Padma Islami Life Insurance Ltd.
KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS (KFI)

Amaint i Million Taka

Sl . Year
No. Pacticulnry 2015 | 2006 | 2007 | 2008 | 2019
01 | Firsi Year Premium Income 5297 33020 [ 42133 82,78 131.67
02 | Renewal Premiur Income | 89530 | 79509 | 64639 | 47083 | 45988
03 | Group & Health Insursnce Premicm 11.40 533 17.60 3520 70.59
M | Gross Premium 143567 | 133063 | 108532 SHE.TH 6621 |
{5 | Reinsurance Premium 2.07 1.42 75 1015 214
| Wet Preminm (4-3) 1433.59 | 133030 | 108457 STE.G) 650,97
07 | Retention Balio (6/4) (%) G99 RA% Qo B0y, 49 L3NG TR, 9968
_ 08 | First Year Premium Income Growth (Ya) L 1TE | DAY | 20,53y | (HD36E) | 5902
19| Renewal Premium Income Growth (%) (1535 | (11 9] {18.70) (27.16) (233
It | Giross Premium Income Growth (%6) (117 (7.31 {18.44) {45.75) 13.45
i First Year Commissions Pasd for sacquisition of life 110,44 310,65 147 08 6247 55,08

msurance busingss

Second Year Commissions paid R acquisition of

12 { o . 1 1527 T.R2 B 4.03 Bl
life insurance business

13 Tl'un.! g.rlld Ln.tq.*.r ‘r't.ar Lnnums:-;usms paidd for 1713 35.84 34,30 11.38 10.69
acguisition of life insuranee business

14 Tolal Commissions paid of aequisition of lile 291 84 25432 18742 7773 71.4%

insurinue business (11+124+13)

15 | First Year Comnussions First Year Prendum (%a) 44 31% 39.33% 33.51% 34.65% 34.92%

Second Yeor Commissions/Second Yeor Renewal

It Prcrtain (% | 0.00% 10L00%, 10,00% 1000 10L00%
e i %4}
Third and Later Year CommssionsThird and | ;

17 Latet Year Premiium (%) 5.00% 5,005 5000 5,004%;, 5.00%
14 | Monagement Express | RET42 | 655.8% | ATRIR | 39328 | I9455
1% | Allowable Management Expenses TH10.30 a9T35 ATH6T 26432 252 0y
20 | Excess Mansgement Expenses (18-19) 251,12 aR.54 9246 128.97 4248
21 | Excess Managemeni Expenses Ration (%) 41.15% RO (R e 48T, 12.47%
22 | Owerall Management Expenses Ratjon (%) GONDY | 49.29% | 5372 | e6.80% 3 12%

23 | Bunewal Expinses Ratio (s} | A304% | 2248% | 3RS | 2158% | 1554%
23 | Claims pad 7320 I 145 35 I*}" n23 Wil a4 hﬁT 52
25 | Claims/Gross Premium (%) Gl 52% W, [ 177.664% 15091 103 84
26| Total Commission Expenses/Gross Preminm (%) 20.33%; 1911 16, S0 13200 1 0LHO%
27 | Ieveéstiment Income sk K4 100,349 7268 T4.RT 6065
28 | Investment Income/Gross Premivm (%) 1 L62%, T.54%, G0 13.53% 1052,
28 | Yield on Life Fund (%) 5.46% J A8 3,68% i, 1 8% 4.96%:

3| Conservabon Ratio (%) | s602% | 533R% | 4HGEY | 4338% | TH0%
a1 | Soeond Policy Vear Laps Ratio (%) by manber oF | 470, | sg.s50 | sogams | s172% | s291%

H O} & 3 (]
= ;11-!:11[':::'],.3[!:u"Ljr Year Lupse Ratio (o) by oumber of | oy o | 7y70m | 6so1w | sssew | ozema
o W P— T ;
3 l]::]ui:';::nlm_f Year Lapse Batio (%) by number of 17528 67.11% 65210 45,199, 04,4805
H A = =i Li]
# ::)1;!_!1:1::1@ Year Lapse Ratio (%) by mimber of | g6 100 | s3380; | s7.04% | ss38% | os01%
35 ::;]‘:gﬂ':“““ Year Lapse Ratio (%) by number of | g giar | 940m, | 7m68% | 89.02% | 97.00%
3 | Second Policy Vear Lapse Raio () by Prewmium | g 0wy | 78704 | s220% | w0t | st
37 I;;du:f“w Yenr Lapse Rutio (%) by Premivm 59.25% 74.00% 64.78% R5.13% 93 18%

3 i‘;ﬁ'{f:;:““‘“’"’“ Lapse Ratio (%) by Premium | oz a0 | woopen | god3s | #4415 | od.09%
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34 ?&Z‘:”W Yeur Lapse Ratio (%) by Premitm THA4% | B3TSY | T2ETW | 8T24% | 96.66%
4p: | Stuth Polley Vear Lapse Ratio () by Fromium | yy a5 | 70,500 | 7s.49% | 8636w | 96a0%
41 | Market Price per Share (in BDT) at year end 3730 W20 | 5020 25.00 17.40
42 | Dividend yield (%) - T04% - - -
43 | Ostanding Premium as ot 3181 December 117.01 11114 [IERE 96,18 144 47
44 | Total Investment o of 31at December 12494 62 1 19185 737.34 48008 458.26
45 | Life Fund as at 31t December 314291 | 273034 | 128836 | 45397 2879
46 | Toml Assets as al 3 st December 363725 331339 23H4.40 2238.66 123&.3}
47 | Paad Up Capital as at 3151 December 324,00 24,00 IHEHD RERE:) AREED
4% | Paid Up Capital/ Total Asse1.(%0) B.91% 9.78% 16.27% 17.37% 17 14%
4% | Met cash fow from operating sctivities 16,18 [36.09) (T8.37) (06, 5T) (5105
50| Met cash flow from Investing activities {25.37) (45.12) e [ 26,20 (.00}
51 | Met cash flow from Fioaneing activitics (00 6.62 (.62 300,00 4n
32 | Met change in ¢ash amd cash equivalemt {4.19) [74.59) (52.83) 943 (17.465)
33, First Year and Renewal Premium Income { Amount in Million Taka)
2015 2016 1017 018 e Deseription
Yenr ’ — e
sanaed | 535537 | 43menr 65205 | 131671 PrSHFGm st nevs polteles
2015 NIA K3.849 190317 28,148 17.692 il Bpersiiny oy oL the
policies issoed in 215
Renewal Premium out of the
2006 N/A NI A 253,204 40,398 26,579 nolicica iasicd in 2016
017 MIA N/A N/A 47728 24,7126 Rencwal Promiun aul of the
policies issued m 2017
2018 NiA NIA N/A NA 12524 BOEA] Bosiuys Ut o
policies isucd m 2018
54, Number of First Yeu and Renewal Policies
1015 2iNh 207 2018 2019 Drescription
Year
47,535 34511 34,174 A4 LRSS Number of new policies issood
; ; Wumber of policies regewed out of the
T .‘ X £
s MNIA 28,720 16,742 3513 1850 holidies inewed fn 2018
- Mumber of policies renewed out of the
_'Z'I}I_ﬁ N/A MiA 16,969 SRS 2753 policies izsusd in-2018
] ) 4 Mumher ol policies ranewad agt of the
207 MiA NA MNIA Sihs iz policies isgwed n 2017
; . 3 Mumber af policies renewed out of the
e ba A DA N/A Js policies issued in 20HE

Dividend was not declared foe 2009 due to non avoilability of Actunrdal Voluston Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To
The Shareholders of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Lid, {‘company’) which
comprise Balance Sheet {Statement of Financial Position) as at December 31,2019, and the Life Revenue Account
{Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income Account), Statement of Changes in Equity, State-
ment of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies.

Inour opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the company as at 31 December 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act
2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and ather applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I5As). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission {BSEC) and Bangladesh Bank, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Matter of Emphasis

We draw attention to the following matters, though our opinion is unqualified in respect of the same;
. The company has not estimated of deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities at this stage,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of
financial statements for the year 2015, These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming the auditer's opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinicn
on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Opinion section we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial state-
ments section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the perfor-
mance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risk of material misstatements of the finan-
cial statements. These results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements,
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Risk Our Responsibility
Property, Plant B Equipment
The carrying walue of property, plant | Our audit procedures to assess the carrying
Eequipment amounts to Taka | value of property, plant & equipment
860,653,846.This represents a significant | included the following:
amount in the company's statement of | Qur audit procedures included controls

financial position as at 31 December 2019
There is a risk of;
» determining which ctosts meet the
criteria for capitalization;
= determining the date on which the
assets |s recognized to property, plant
and equipment and depreciation
commences;
» the estimation of economic useful lives
and residual values assigned to Fixed
asset.

We identified the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter
because of the high level of management
judgment invelved and because of its
significance to the financial statements.

testing and substantive procedures covering,
in particular:

s Assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over the
completeness, existence and accuracy
of property, plant and equipment
including the key internal controls
over the estimation of useful
economic lives and residual values;

e Aszessing, on a sample basis, costs
capitalized during the vyear by
comparing the costs capitalized with
the relevant underlying
documentation,  which included
purchase agreements and invoices,
and assessing whether the costs
capitalized met the relevant criteria
for capitalization.

* Testing the key controls over the
management’s judgment in relation to
the accounting estimates of the
depreciable lives and residual values
of property, plant and equipment.

e Reconclle on a sample basis the
additional capitalized costs for the
vear to the underlying invoices and
supporting documents.

* We reviewed minutes of board
meetings for approval of the total
capitalization cost,

¢ We  assessed the  company's
capitalizations policy for compliance
with 1AS 16 and ftested the
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expenditure capitalized against the
capitalizations policy.

s We traced payments to supporting
documents,

o We assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures of the financial statements

See note no 19.0 and Annexure to the financial statements.

Valuation of Life Fund

Valuation of life fund invalves complex and
subjective judgments about future events,
both internal and external to the business, for
which small changes in assumptions can result
in material impacts to the valuation of these
liabilities.

At 31 December 2019, the company reported
total balance under the head of Life Insurance
Fund of BDT 209,785977 (2018: BDT
456,356,136).

The wark to address the valuation of life fund
included the following procedures:

* Understood the governance process in
place to determine the life fund.

= Reviewed the actuarial report and assessed
tha reasonableness of the assumptions used
to estimate the liability,

* Tested key judgment and controls over the
liability, including the preparation of the
manually calculated components. We focused
on the consistency in  treatment and
methodology period-on-period.

Based on the work performed and the
evidence obtained, we consider the
assumption used to be appropriate.

See note no. 6.00 to the financial statements

Premium Income

Gross insurance premiums amount of Tk,

662,109,389 is comprise the net premiums
amount of Tk, 659,956,485 is received for the
whole period of cover provided by contracts
entered into during the accounting period.
Given the important nature, connections to
other items to the financial statemants and
sensitivity of the item we believe this area
pose high level of risk.

« (Carried out cut-off testing to ensure
unearned premium income has not
been included in the premium income.

* On a sample basis reviewed policy to
ensure appropriate policy stamp was
affixed to the contract and the same
has been reflected in the premium
register,

* Ensured on a sample basis that the
premium income was being deposited
inthe designated bank account.
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» Tested on a sample basis to see that
appropriate VAT was being collected
and deposited to  bank through
Treasury Challan,

s For a sample of insurance contracts
tested to see if appropriate level of
reinsurance was done and whether
that reinsurance  premium  was
deducted from the gross premium.

»  Applying specialist judgment ensured
if there is any impairment of the
reinsurer.

# Finally assessed the appropriateness
and presentation of disclosures against
relevant accounting standards,
Insurance Act 1938 (as amended in
2010), Insurance Rules, 1958 and
ather applicable rules and regulations
and regulatory guidelines.

See note no. 21.00 to the financial statements

Other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon, We have not been provided the Director's report and other information
contained within the annual report except the financial statements to the date of our auditor's report. We expect
io obtain the remaining reports of the Annual report after the date of our auditor’s report. Management is
responsible for the other information.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the ather information ident:-
fied above when it becomes avallable and, in doing so, consider whethet the other information [s materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained In the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,
We have nothing to report on going concern

We are required to report if we have concluded that the use of the going concarn basis of accounting is inappropriate
or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis for a period
of at least twelve months from the date of the financial statements. We have nothing to report in these respects.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements and Internal Controls:

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securities and
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Exchanae Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstate-
ment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or Lo cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to de so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's finandial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Qur objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinicn. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 15As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgments and maintain professional
skepticlsm threughout the audit, We also;

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate ta provide a basis for our opinion,

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal control,

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management,

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the geing concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention In our auditor’s repert to the related disclo-
sures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclu-
sichs are based on the audit evidence abtained up to the date of ourauditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a geing concem,

. Evaluate the everall presentation, structure and centent of the financial statements, including the disclo-
sures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we Identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
maost significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communi-
cated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securities and

Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we
also report that:

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

In our opinion, proper books of accounts, records and other statutery books as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appeared from our examinations of those books;

As per section 62{2) of the Insurance Act 1938 (amended in 2010), in our opinion to the best of our
knowledge and belief an according to the information and explanation given to us, all expenses of
management wherever incurred and whether incurred directly or indirectly, in respect of insurance
business of the company transacted in Bangladesh during the year under report have been duly debited
1o the Revenue Accounts and the of the Company;

The information and explanations required by us have been received and found satisfactory,

As per regulation 17 of part 1 of the third schedule of the Insurance Act 1938 {amended in 2010}, in our
opinion to the best of our information and as shown by its books, the company during the year under report
has not paid any commission in any outside Bangladesh in respect of any its Business re-insured abroad;
The Balance Sheet {Statement of Financial Position), and the Life Revenue Accounts{Statement of Profit and
Lass and Comprehensive Income Account), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows of
the Company dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns;and

The expenditure was incurred far the purpose of the Company's business.

The company has complied with relevant laws and regulations pertaining to reserves,

Dated: Dhaka Murul Hossain Khan FCA
July 30,2020 Membership Ne.-240
Kazi Zahir Khan & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
Amount in Taka
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES Motes
: 2019 I 2018
SHAREHOLDERS CAFITAL
Authorized Capital
100,060,006 Crdinary Shares of Tk.10/- each 1,000 uu’n!{mn 10, I, 0
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
38,850,000 Ordinary Shares of ThA0/-each a0 FRE,A00,000 JEE,B00,000
Balance of Fund and Accounts
Life Insurance Fund .l 200, 785,077 456 356,136
Share Value Fluctuation Reserve
Sadaka Fund (Padma Welfare Fund) 24,369,202 24444.20
Amount due h? other persons or bodies Carrying on =0 1,007,932 5,608,509
Insurance Business
Liabilities and Provisions 1,614,913,978 1,378,002,262
Estimated Liabilities in Respect of Outstanding clarms
whether due or intimated, 59 W2A42,600 FIRBTROAD
Sundry Creditors 5.0 130,080,358 136,132,598
Premium Deposite 1.0 1991, 000 1,991,000
Lumg Term Loan (Non-Cost Bearimg loan) 1.0 GO0, H00,000 SO0, 001,000
Total Capital and Liabilitics 2,238 877,089 2253201109

Annexed notes formean integral part of these Financial Statements,

4

Chief Executive Officer

Signed as per annexed report of even date

Dated, Dhaka
30 July, 2020

Kazi Zahir Khan & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
PROPERTY AND ASSETS Note Amountin Toba
: - el 2019 2018

Loan on Policies
Within their surrender value 12.0 559,859 592,973
Investments 130 458,258,525 390,806,485
Un-realized Loss on Investment 5(,547,269 11,757,147
Cutstanding Premium 4.0 142,472,114 96,182,153
Profit, Dividend & Rent Accrued but not Due 15.0 29,568,692 22.968,311
Advances, Deposits and Prepayvments 16.0 348,496,328 303,540,717
Cash, Bank and Other Balances 344,997, 928 521,507,256
Fixed Deposit with Banks 17.0 40,600,324 83,271,578
SND & CD with Banks 8.0 303,537,015 437,826,175
Caszh in Hand 854, 5R9 409,503
Other Assets 861,982,344 #99,856,066
Padmﬂ‘Lle Tower & Other Fixed Assets (Al Cost Less 19.0 860,653,847 596,507,330
Depreciation) i
Printing, Stationery & Stamps in Hane 0.0 1,328,497 3,348,736

Total Property and Assets 2,238,877,089 2,253,211, 104

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements,

¥

e

Chief Executive Officer Director Director

Signed as per annexed report of even date

Dated, Dhaka
30 July, 2020

A AE

Chairman

o —

Kazi Zahir Khan & Co,
Chartered Accountants
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PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

LIFE REVENUE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Particulars

Amount in Taka

MNotes

2019 I 2018
BALANCE OF FUND AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR | 456,356,136 u 1,288,257 466 |
456,356,136 1,288,257 466
PREMIUM LESS5 RE-INSURANCE 21.0
First year premium (Ekok Bima) 108,636,653 68,010,695
First year premium (Khudra Bima) 23,035,129 ll 14,741,074
Tatal First year Premium 131,671,782 82,751,769
Benewal premium (Ekok Bima) 403,687,007 39,752 982
Renewal premium (Khudra Bima) 56,161,769 80077779
Total Renewal Premium 459 848,776 470,830,761
591,520,558 553,582,530
Group Insurance Premium | 70,588,831 || 35,199,199 |
Gross premium 662,109,389 588,781,729
Less: Re-Insurance premium | 2,142,904 H 10,150,899 1
Nel Premium 659,966,485 578,630,830
Profit, Dividend and Rent il 69,651,867 79,669,993
Other Tncome 230 5,580,638 6,111,700
75,538 505 85,781,693
Total 1,191,861,126 1,952,669, 989
First vear premium, where the maximum
Premium paying period is
Single 19,474 6l4 14,273,664
Tworyears
Three years
Four years
Five years
Six years 118,575
Seven vears
Eight vears 18,397,269 14,244,000
Nine years
Ten vears 13,920,420 8,502,715
Eleven vears 960
Twaelve VEATS OF OVer 749,749,954 45,731,390
{Including throughout life)
131,671,782 ﬂ 82,751,769




CLAIMS UNDER POLICIES (INCLUDING PROVISION FOR
CLAIMS DUE OR INTIMATED) LESS RE-INSURANCE

By Death

By Maturity

By Survival

By Surrender

By Others

EXPENSES OF MANAGEMENT
Commission

{(a) Commission to Insurance Agents (less that on Re-
In=urance)
(b) Allowances and Commission Other than Conumission

included in Sub-ltem (a) above

Salaries ete, (Other than o agents and those contalned in
the allowances and commission)
Festival Bonus

Conveyvance

Board & Other Meeting Fees

Audit Fees

Shariah Meeting Fees

Medical Expenses

Professional Fees & Legal Exp
Registration & Renewal Fees
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses
P'rinting

Statlonery

Policy Stamp Expenses

Revenue Stamp Expenses

Postage & Courier bills

Telephone & Fax

Training, Recruitment Expenses
Meeting Expenses

Office Rent

Office Maintenance Expenses

Gas, Water & Electricity Charges
Electric Expenses

Car Fuel & Lubricants

Car Repairs & Maintenance

Car Renewal, Registration & Insurance
Bank Charges & Others

Paper & Periodicals

Entertainment

Mobile, Internet &Telephone Bills
Seminar & Conferences

Fees, Donation & Subscription
Carriage Expenses
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687,524,476 1,065,178,454
7,635,301 38,307,000
450,414,985 772,542,737
158,766,271 181,248,800
3,495,845 3,065,132
67,212,074 69,974,785
71,481,970 77,725,670
45,974,520 59,491,117
25,503,450 18,234,553
183,309,036 313,576,758
147,367,503 201,499,242
2,825,064 17,562,888
1,065,246 3,500,854
1,048,800 1,484,149
189,000 156,000
55,200 43,750
36,780 1,009,060
54,724 1,489,544
B34,140 2,377,860
123,305 1,349,982
1,442,933 6,570,949
2,204,515 3,248,649
385,350 989,960
299,190 312,797
5R2.456 1,424,393
459,894 1,994,590
300,000 834,470

= 187,707
9,364,909 22,341,490
1,930,624 3,349,464
4,268,397 9,028,442
195,176 469,294
774,039 2,485,282
770,151 3,455,487
555,445 1,343 840
Y27 437 1,651,594
19,589 42,400
773,525 1,279,849
1,317,008 922,866

- 17.535
1,218,677 1,344,876

. A0,795
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Prize & Conlest Expenses - 754,000
Trade License B0,742 59,499
Service Charge 1,341,752 6,880,113
General Expenses - 145,000
Annual General Meeting 185,385 271,813
Contribution for Provident Fund - 10,115,134
Group Insurance Premium (Expense ) = 452,652
[T Expenses 311,375 -
OTHER EXPENSES 39,759,667 39,832,971
Deprecialion on Fixed Assets 36,389,741 37442114
Vat on Office Rent 3,360,926 2,53H),857
Total Expenses 482,075,149 1,496,313,853
Balance of Fund at the end of the year as shown in the
Balance Sheet 2019 209,785,977 456,356,136
Tolal 1,191,861,126 1,952 669,989

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director Director

Signed as per annexed report of even date

N B

Chairman

o —

Dated, Dhaka
30 July, 2020

Kazi Zahir Khan & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.
STATEMENT OF LIFE INSURANCE FUND

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

(As per Sub-Section-2 of Section-26 of Insurance Act 2010)

Pkt Amount in Taka
2019 208
ASSETS
Loan on Insurer's policies within their surrender value 559, K89 592,973
Investments 508,805,704 408,503,632
Outstanding Premium 144,472,114 96,182,153
Profit, Dividend & Rent accrued but not due 20,568,692 22,968,311
Advances, Deposits & Drepayments 348 496,328 303,540,717
Cash, Bank and Other Balances 344,991,928 521,507,256
Fixed Assets (at cost less depreciation) B6l1,653,847 896,507,330
Printing & Stationery Stamps in Hand 1,328,497 3.348.756
2,238 877,089 2,253,211,109
. LIABILITIES
Am:nuur due to ather persons or bodies carrying on insorance | 007,952 5,608,509
business
Estimatedl Liabilities in Respect of Clutstanding claims whether 582,842,620 739,878,665
due ar intimated
Sundry Creditors 130,050,358 136,132,597
Sadaka Fund (Padma Welfare Fund) 24,369,202 24.444.2(r]
Long Term Loan 900,600,000 500,000,000
Premium Deposit 1,997,000 1,997,000
1,640,291,112 1,408,054,972
C. Gross Fund (A - B) 598,585,977 845,156,137
D. Shareholders' Capital (Paid-up Capital) 388,800,000 388,800,000
Life Insurance Fund as at 31 December 2019 (C - D) 209,785,977 456,356,137

Annexed noles form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman
Signed as per annexed report of even date
Dated, [haka Kazi Zahir Khan & Co.

Chartercd Accountants

30 July, 2020




PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.
FORM "AA"
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CLASSIFIED SUMMARY OF THE ASSETS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Class of Asscts Book Value Market Value Remarks
INVESTMENTS S0 B0G, 794 ] 458,258,525 | Realizable Value
CASH, BANK & OTHER BALANCES 344,991,928 344,991,928
Cash on Fixed Deposit with Banks 400,608,324 40,600,324 | Book Value
Current & STD Accounts with Banks 303,537,015 35370015 | Book Value
Cash in Hand 54,5454 454,564 | Book Value
Interest, Dividend & KEent Accrued bul not due 29 568,692 ] 29 568,692 | Realizable Value
OTHER ASSETS 1,355,510,675 1,355,510,675
Outstanding Premium 144472114 144472114 | Realizable Value
Printing, Stationery & Stamps in Hand 1,328 497 1,328,497 | At Cost
Advances, Deposils & Prepayments 348 4%, 328 348,490,328 | Realizable Value
Loan on policies &G RO 555,889 | Realizable Value
Fixed Assets (Al cost less depreciation) Ba), 653,847 Hhl,653 847 | Written Down Value

TOTAL 2,238,877,089 2,188,329,820

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements:

Dvirector

Chief Executive Officer Director

Signed as per annexed report of even date

Dated, Dhaka
30 July, 2020

Kazi Zahir Khan & Co.
Charlered Accountants
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PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

For the year ended December 31, 2019
Particulars Share Share General :;:::W,z::tl Retained Total
Capital Premium | Reserve Ph _ Eammings Taka
Losses
L 348,500,000 . : . : 348,400,000
(11 January 2019
Addition during the . ) . ) . )
year (Bonus Share)
Equity as on 31
" o g - g H f}
D ber 2019 FHE, 500,000 885,800,000
For the year ended December 31, 2018
Particulars Share Share General s:::;;:: Retained Taotal
Capital Premium | Reserve Earmings Taka
Losses
Eqquity as on
01 January 2018 388,600,000 B - B - JRE, 800,000
Addition during, the
year (Bonus Share)
Equity as on
8800 = 5 = - 88,800,000
31 December 2018 gm0 oo

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman

Signed as per annexed report of even date

(e

Dated, Dhaka Kazi Zahir Khan & Cao,
30 July, 2020 Chartered Accountants
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PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Particulars

Amount in Taka

i || 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Collection from Premium 611,676,524 588,434 HEG
[nvestment income and other income received 25,506,087 71,838, 199
Payment for Claims (849,086,099) (862,986,6349)
Payment for Management Expenses and otherg {208.5582,674) {465,997 437}
MNet Cash Flows used operating activities {5310,485,562) (668,710,986)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (2.728,162) (11,374,232}
Proceeds from sale of Fived Assel Jh, 944, 558 -
[nvestment made during the Peried {10242, 162) 274,414,071
Met Cash Flows from investing aclivities (66,0249,766) 263,039 5349
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/ Decrease in Loan from Bank - -
Hicrease/ Decrease in Long term Loan 400,000,000 500,000, 000
MNel Cash Flows from financing activities 400,000,000 500,000,000
Met increase/[ecrease in cash and cash equivalents. {176,515,328) 94,328,852
Cash and Cash Equivalenis al the beginning of the period 521,507,256 427,174,404
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 344,991,928 521,507,256
Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements,
Chief Executive Officer Director Director . Chairman

Signed as per annexed report of even date

Dated, Dhaka
340 July, 2020

Kazi Zahir Khan & Co,
Chartered Accountants
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Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at & for the year ended December 31, 2019

1. LEGAL S5TATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited was incorporated on April 26, 2000 as a Public Limited Company under the
Companies act 194 and was registered with the Department of Insurance on April 30, 2000, The Company is
engaged in Life Insurance Business,

The Company went for Public issue in March 2012 and the Shares of the Company are listed in both Dhaka Stock
Exchange Ltd and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

2, Components of the Financial Statements

The Financial Statements include the following Components:

il Balance Sheet

i) Life Revenue Account

iii} Statement of Cash Flows

iv) Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and

v) Accounting Polices and Explanatory Notes

vi} Classified Summery of assets (Form AA)

vil} Statement Life Insurance Fund.

3, Basis of Presentation and Statement of Compliance

The following underlying assumptions, measurement  bases, laws, rules, regulations and  accounting
pronouncements hiave been considered in preparing the Financial Statements:

= Going concern

= Accrual unless stated otherwise (except branch office)

* Historical cost Convention

* The Insurance Act, 2010 az amended

* The Insurance Rule 1958

» The Companies Act. 1994

* The Securities and Exchange Commission Rules. 1487

* The Income Tax Ordinance 1984

* The International Accounting Standards (TASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Bangladesh (ICAB)
* Any other applicable legislation.

4. Significant Accounting Policies

4.0 Revenue recognilion

Mew business premiums are recognized once the related policies /First Premium Receipts (FI'R) have been issued
and the premiums received by the Company. Premium received before issuance of FPR are recognized as lability,
Renewal outstanding premium under the policies are recognized as income within financial period of which

premium are subsequently received,
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4.02 Investments

i} Investment in Govl. Securities

Investments in Govt, Securities are recognized as per the guidelines of IFRS-39, Profit on investments is accounted
for on acerual basis.

ii) Investment in Shares

Investment in Shares is considered at market price at Balance Sheet date. Unrealized loss due to fall of Market Price

ie; Difference between cost price and market price is considered separately as Un-realized Gain/(Loss) on
Investment.

4.03 Depreciation on Fixed Assels

Depreciation on Fised Assets has been caleulated adopling diminishing balance method on all classes and on the

estimated useful life of Fixed Assets. Methods and rates of providing depreciation are consistently applied in
relation bo previous year (s,

Category of Fixed Assels Rate of Depreciation
Padma Life Tower R
Flat and Building 5%
Furniture & Fixtures 15%
Dftice Decoration 20
Office Equipment 154,
Motor Vehicles 20,
Electric Installation 10
Telephone Installation 10%
|Sign Board %

4.04 Inventories

Inventories comprising of Printing Materials, Stocks of Stationary and Stamps have been valued at lower of cost and
net realizable value as outlined in [AS-2.

4.05 Taxation

Provision for taxation is based on taxable income determined under the Fourth Schedule of the Income Tax
Ordinance on the basis of Actuarial Valuation Report and the Accounts,

Tax provision has not been made in the financial statements during the year due to business recessionand no
actuarial valuation has been conducted since 2017.

As the profits and gains from Life Insurance Business are determined under the 4" Schedule of the [TO, the

Management feels it is not necessary to make estimate of deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities at this stage as per
provision of [AS-12.
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4.06 Commission

Commission to Insurance Agents (less that received on Re-Insurance) represents First Year Commission, Renewal
Commission and Group Commission. Allowance and Commission (Other than Commission to Insurance Agents
less that on Reinsurance) represent Filed Officers Salary and Allowances including incentive Bonus.

4.07 Risk and uncertainties for use of estimates in preparation of Financial Statements

Preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the Bangladesh Accounting Standards requires management
to make estimates and assumption that effect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statement and revenue and expenses during the period
reported. Actual result could differ from those estimates, Estimates are used for accounting of certain items such as
long term contracts, depreciation and amortization, emplovees benefit plans, taxes, reserves and contingencies.

4.08 Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared on Direct Method in accordance with [AS-7.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities have been presented under Divect Method as outlined i the Securities and
Exchange Rules 1987,

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, Cash at Banks including Fixed Deposits and other balances
which were available for use of the Company without any restriction and it also includes Collection in hand which
are fully collected subsequently.

4,09 Employees' Benefit Plans TAS-19

i) Provident Fund

The Company operates a recognized contributory Provident Fund for all its regular emplovees. The Provident Fund
is administered by the Board of Trustees and is funded both by contributions from employvees and from the
Company @ 10% of the basic pay.

ii) Gratuity

According to management decision Gratuity Fund Payable amounting Tk, 32,645,642.00 will be transfer to Gratuity
Fund near future,

4.10 Responsibility for Preparation and presentation of Financial Statements

The Management of the Company is responsible tor the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements under
section 183 of the Companies Act 1994 and as per the provision of The Framework for the preparation and
presentation of Financial Statements issued by the internalional Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) as
adepted by the institute of the Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB).
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411 Claims

Survival Benefit, claims and annuities ave accounted for when due for payment. Death claims and all others claims
are accounted for when intimated. Provision for outstanding death claims has been made based on the intimation of
the death claims received up to 31 December 2018,

412 Reporting period
Financial Statement of the Company covers one Calendar vear from January (1 to December 31, 2015,

4.13 Comparative

Comparative information have been disclosed i respect of the previous years for all numerical information in the
financial statermnents and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for understanding of the
current vear's financial statements.

Re-Arrangement

Previous year's figure has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure betler comparability with the
current year's presentation without causing any impacl on the profit and value of assets and liability as reported in
the Financial Statement.

Re-Statement

In finalizing the financial statements for the vear ended December 31, 2019 some figures of previous year were
restated to conform the provisions in accordance with para 22, 42 & 49 of BAS-: “ Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors”. During the vear the following accounting policies and errors have been rectified
in compliance with LAS-8.

A) Correction is made for wrongly charging of depreciation of Land value and Advance against 6th -7th Floor of
Padma Life Tower and necessary adjustment has been made with Life Insurance Fund Retrospective effects
were considered for previous years also.

B) Correction is made for wrongly considering Un-realized Gain/ (Loss) on Investment as revenue expenditure
and necessary adjustment has been made with Life Insurance Fund. Retrospective effects were considered for
previous years also.

413 Reporting currency

The figures in the financial statement represent Bangladesh Currency (Taka). Figures have been rounded off to the
nearest Taka.
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Amount in Taka

2019 | 2018

SHARE CAFMTAL
Authorized Capital
100000 Oedirary Shaves of TR0 each, 1, D0, (M0, 00 1,00, 00,000
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up
A H50,000 Ondinary Shares of T 10 each fully paid-up 388,800,000 366,800,000
Distribution Schedule of Pald-up Caplial
Category of Shareholders Share holding{t) 2019 2118 ]
Spansnr .35 135 265400 135,265,400
General Piblic .65 253,534,600 253,534,600

As per listing Regulations 2042) of the Stock Eschange regarding shareholding l.\mitinn it ditferent
categories of investors and the number of sharcholders and percentage as on 31 December 2009 s given

Trerliy:
Category of Share Holding No.of N, of Share | Share Holding
Share Holders Range Shares Haolders Ua
Si11-300000 3000 3 (L0077
ADN00 -0 - =
ADNN00- 7NN - -
FOMCE 100K = -
By ‘| ORI - 2000000 - - -
2000001-2500000 1388320 1 B4
25000 - 300000 (41,620 3 201,683
SN0 -35000I 3,043 600 | 7857 %
Suib Tutal 13,526,540 8 34,799
Q01-3000 4,355,960 AB6T EL20%
S001- 10000 1. 724%4 2007 4.02%
O] - 20 1,808,214 129 4.65%
2O00FL-3ONEN F18.554 a7 2.36'%
00T -50000 1,363 741 54 3.51%
General SOO0T-100000 [ 217625 18 313k
Public LODDL-500000 2 BEE 523 i4 743%
ST -1000000 000,404 3 T 2%
O <1 500000 S 4 12.005%
1 SO0 <0000 3,348,001 2 913
Sub Total 25,353,460 5316 B5.21%:
Total 34,880,000 5324 TIPS
60 LIFE INSURANCE FUND
This comnsists of accumolated balance of revenue surplus
Crpening Balance 456,35k, 136 1,288,257 466
Add: Increasey (Decrease) in Life Hevenue Account during the year (246,570,154} {831 5,330
)9, TRE 47T 456,356,136

AMOUNT DUE TO OTHER FERSONS DR BODMES CARRYING ON INSURANCE BUSINESS

I'he amount represents the balance due o SCOR GLOBAL LIFESE SINGAPORE BRANCH on sccount of
shure of pe-lnsurarsce commission and shire of claim after adjustment of re-insurance premiom doe 0 Hem,
The balance to SCOR GLOGAL LIFE SE, SINGAPDRE BEANCH has been accounted for the year ended 51

[wvembser 2005,

Opening Balance
Add. Inbmated durini the vear

5l 500
2142904

1342002
10150, 558




8.0

a)

b)

<)

d)

9.0

Less. Adjustment against Re-Insurance Claim Received

Less. Paid during the year

Less, Commission during the year
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7,751,413 11,492,931
: ]
7,751,413 11,492,931
6,743,451 | 5,884,422 |
1,007,932 5,608,509
1,007,932 5,608,509

ESTIMATED LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF OUTSTANDING CLAIMS WHETHER DUE OR

INTIMATED

Death Claim
{fl'p.r-.'rlir'lg| Balance
Add. Claim intimabed during the véur

Less. Re-Insurance claim received

Less Padd during the year
Closing Balance

Maturity Claim
Openiing Balance

Add. Claim intimated daring the vear

Less, Paid during the year
Closing Balanee

Survival Benefit

Cpening Balance
Add, Claim intimated during the year

Less. Paid during the vear
Closing Balance

Surrender Claim
Opening Balance
Add. Clabm intimated during the vear

Lass. Paid during the year
Closing Balanee

Tatal

SUNDRY CREDITORS

Audit Fees Pavable

Company's Reg. 4 Ren. Fees Payable
Telephone, E-mail & Internet Bill
Eluctricity Gas & Watoer Bills Payable
Printing & Stationary Fayable
Advertisement & Publicity

OHfice Rent Payable

Agency Commission Bill Payable

37,635,301 8,165,058
18,434,170 38,307,000
56,069,471 146,472,058

= 1 T
S, 169,471 46,472 058
19,392,993 | 8,836,757 |
36,676,478 37,635,301
691,626,686 512,936,770
515,960,742 772,582,737
1,207,587,428 1,285,519,507
673,418,224 | 593,502 821 |
534,169,204 691,626,686
#,6935,833 12,377,300
14,951,863 181,248,800
21,647,696 193,626,100
14,892,512 | 186,930,267 |
6,755,184 6,695,833
3,920,845 4,207,732
3,405,995 3,065,132
7,416,840 7,272,854
2,175,086 | 3,352,009 |
5,241,754 3,920,845
582,842,620 739,878,665
258,000 120,000
5,595,195 5,498,155
171,280 252,235
735,772 418,668
470,600 3,262,030
35,680 233,527
2,441,250 3,924,190
10,587,798 5,708,822




0.0

13.0

Certificate & License Fee
Staff Security Deposit

hiotor Workshop Enlist Mooy
Security for Motor Car
Earmest Money Eefundable
Security for Office Kent
Salary & Allowances

Legal & Professional fes
Medical Expenses

Repair & Maintanance

Bank Charge

Cleaning & Washing
Annual General Meeting
Drevelopmment Expensts

Car Fuel & Lubricant

Car Hegistration & Kenewals
Advance Against Cor Soles
Tax at Source Payable

VAT at Source Payvable
Provident Fund

Crataity Fund

Other Security Deposit (Third Party)
Prowision for Incone Tax
Total

PREMIUM DEFPOSIT

Balanve break-up is as under;

Opening Balance
Add. Addition during the year (1st vear Premium)

Less, Realized & adjusted during the year
Closing Balance

LONG TERM LOAN (Non-cost bearing loan)
Unitex Petrolinm Limited

Unitex LT Gas Limndted

Crest Holding Limditad

Pavilion Intl. Limited

Affinity Assets Limited

Total

LOAN ON POLICIES
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13,913,001 13,434,336
H.637 928 SEOBLA2E
= 40,000
1,123,450 1,123,450
294 3749 794,379
5,082,109 5,176,495
115170 =
2700 =
28,840 -
TR3TO -
545 5
1.600 .
49,000 =
54,1480 .
10,000 -
134,504 -
2,752,570 -
28 384,411 24,262,490
435 66t 249,044
- 13,687 629
I2pAH.642 32,648,642
Zi3.416 394,878
15,510,000 15,510,000
130,080,358 136,132,598
1,590, (WM 5,845,625
— 199000
1,459, (00 7 H36,625
- | 5,845,625 |
1,591, (K 1,997,000
TR0, (M, o0 0,000,000
THO, OO0, (O 100,000,000
THO,O00,000 1000000
LE, OO0, OO0 L0000, 000
180,000,000 000,006,000
RO, (MM, CHMD 500,000,000

This balance represcent the amouant sanctomed to policy holders against PU].iI.'.'.i.t‘a— within thelr surcender

valoe,

Upening Balance
Add, Payment during the year

Lasst, Realized & adpested during the vear
Closing Bafance
INVESTMENTS

Investment in Govt, Securities

Statutory Deposit with Bangladesh Bank (Note: 13.01)

Bangladesh Govt '1'reas|.£1'}-' Bond

Investinent in Shares
Which is lower than the Cost (Mote: 13.02)

592 U735 474,590)
- 185,028
592,973 59,618
33084 | ti, 645 |
550,589 592,973
237,700,000 237,700,000
15,000,000 15,000,000
229 200,000 223 700,000
109,558,525 68,106,485
104 558,525 | 68,106,485 |




Investment in Others

Al-Manar Hospital

Investment in Bond/ Mutual Fund (SIBL)
Nuvistia Pvl. Lid,

Total

13.m

Statutory Deposit with Bangladesh Bank
Treasury Bond
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111,000,000 91,000,000
27,006, 060 11,000,000
T, 000 BL,000,000
20,000,000

158,258,525 396,506,485
15,000,000 15,000,000

In compliance with section 7(1) of Insurance Act 1938, the amount hias been depesited into Bangladesh Bank
tor which the Bank has issued 5 vears Bapeladesh Govt, Treasury Bond in favor  of the Company with

interest @ 11.60% per annum.

1302 INVESTMENT IN SHARES AT MARKET PRICE

Face Value
Wame of the Company Per Share T_;:l;f Avfﬁf?;;fer C“T;ETW Marl:;tk:’alue
(Th.)
T T e Face Value | No f]f Avg, :ﬂust per|  Cost Price Market Value
Per Share | Unit unit (Tk) {Tk.) (Tk.)

ADENTEL 10 18968 30,00 S64, (140 -
BSCCL 10 10060 150,31 1,503, 100 38,000
ESCIUTRENTT 10 10760 40100 430,400 304,508
FORTUNE 10 186340 28.61 5,300,842 4,285,820
GENEXIL 10 392 B70 3,409 20,420
MNew Line 10 4252 o35 40,023 63,374
Runner Aubo 10 7566 T1.43 540,450 450,177
Singer BD 10 (0 20276 1013814 902,000
55 Sieel 10 40510 28.14 1,139,938 911,475
LUPCDCL 10 11 36235 398,588 260,830
Zaheen Spin 10 SN 993 8,932,530 8,190,000
Bashundhara Paper Mills Lid. 10 10807 0,00 Bhd, 560 497122
Beximoo 10 37726 73005 4,218,599 796,614
Fortune 10 3593050 3469 135,120,201 91,923,180

Total 160,105,794 109 558,525




14.0

15.0

1.0

17.0

a)

b

16

OUTSTANDING PREMIUM

Crpeenimg Balanee
Add. Outstanding premium for the year

Less. Reahsed & adjusted during the vear

FROFIT, DIVIDEND & RENT ACCRUED BUT NOT DUE

Bangladesh Bank

Bongladesh Bank (BCGTH)

Exim Banlk Lud

Social 1slami Bank Lid.

Shahjalal Islarmi Bank Lid.

First Security Islami Bank Led.

AB Bank Ltd,

R Insurance Proft Commission
Social Isfami Bank Lid. (SIBL Bond)

Total

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Salary {Admn,)

Office Bent

Adv, Income Tax (deduction at sources)
Development Stall

Ohhier Drew, Expenises

Travelling & Cony, (Dev. & Admin)

Addv. Againgl Expendes

Mudvance Head Office Building, Land, Flat & Fixed Assets
Seminar & Conlercnoe

Sundry Treliors

Total

FIXED DEFOSIT WITH BANKS

MTDR AGAINST GENERAL FUND
Exim Bank Bangladesh L.
Exim Bank Bangladesh Lid., Motijhee]l Branch, Dhaka.

Shahjalal Islami Bank Led.
Shahjalal Tslami Bank Ltd.. Foreign Exchange Branch, Thaka

Social Islami Bank Lid.
Social Islamit Bank Ltd., New Eskaton Branch, Dhaka

AB Bank Lid,
AL Bank Ltd., [slamu Banking Branch,

MTDR AGAINST TAKAFUL FUND
First Security [slami Bank Ltd,

First Security Islami Bank Ltd,, Mohammadpor Branch, Dhaka,

Total
SNIVSTD & CD ACCOUNTS WITH BANKS

Bank Balanves

I Annual Report 2019 |

iy, 182,153 109,540,834
144,472,114 95,182,153
240,654,267 206,022,987

96,182,153 | 109,840,534 |
144,472,114 96,182,153

1,0HH1.995 1,000, 9495
201,796,574 12,015,643
515271 598,665
289,335 #9.511
40,645 1,116

i, (11 6 818,858
A8, 604 1,075,693
2.%84,764 2.384,764
1,448,110 4869006
29 568,602 22,968,311
433,754 449,528
1,750,949 2,800,756
118,074,738 114,431,640
28,444,363 30,348,074
410,974 415,387
154,264 75,234
1,135,495 56,9701
119,860,127 105,029,033
- 718,227

78,231,664 49,205,868

348,496,328 303,540,717
4,756,397 12,692,498
4,756,397 | 12,692,495 |

- 5,246,749

- 1 5,246,749 |
22,543,927 9,400,000
22,843,927 | 4,400,000 |

- 4513

- | 45,134,584

13,000,000 10,797,747

13,000,000 | 10,797,747 |

40,600,324 B3 57R
303,537,013 437,826,175

Thes bank balance consisting of number of SND/STD aod. number  of OD Bank Accounts maintained with
different banks through the country which were duly reconciled.
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Amount in Taka
19 2018
190 PADMA LIFE TOWER & OTHER FIXED ASSETS SCHEDULE
[ At Cost loss Depreciation)
Al COST:
Opening Balance 1,276,925,187 1,275, 8685,955
Acld: Addition during the year 2,728,162 11,374,232
1,279,653,3449 1,287 260,187
Less: Disposal/ Adjustment during the yvear 25,560,00) 10,335,000
Closing Balance 1,253,793, 344 1,276,925, 187
H. ACCUMULATED DEPRICIATION:
Opening Balance 380,417 857 352,180,073
Auld: Addition during the vear 36,349,741 7442114
416,807 598 380,622,187
Less: Disposal / Adjustren! during the year 23 6EE (G 9,204,330
Closing Balance 393,139 502 380417 857
Fixed Asset (At cost less depriciation) (A-B) Bi), 653, 847 896 507,330
Dwrtalls are given in the fived assets schedule (ANNEXURE - A).
200 PRINTING, STATIONERY & STAMPS IN HAND
Printing Malerials 1.715.377 2 50} 855
Stationery - 284581
Stamps in Hand 113,120 473,300
Total 1,328 497 3,348,73h
210 PREMIUM INCOME LESS RE-INSURANCE
SL. Type of Premium Gross Premiom Re-Insurance Met Premium
i |Fivst year premium (Ekok Bima) 108,636,653 2,142,904 106,493,749
ii  |First vear premiom (Khudm Bima) 25,035,129 23,035,129
il |Renewal premium (Ekok Bima) 3,687,007 403,687,007
iv  |Renewal premium (Khadra Bima) 56, 161,709 St 101, 7A9
v |Group Premivm T0L588 431 70,588,531
Total 2019 662,109 3589 2H42 904 639,900,485
Total 2008 5HH,781,729 10,150,859 578,630,830
Total 2017 1,085,320,257 754,081 1,084,566,176
220 PROFIT, DIVIDEND AND RENT
Profit on Fixed Deposit 720,125 10,799,693
Profit on 5TD A SC with Bank A57.247 1,145,555
Profit on BGTR 30,303,106 23,239,128
Dividend [neoms 3,048,297 4,911,733
Inceme from Office Rent 2208276 23,005,419
Ri-Ins. Profit) Commassion 2318325 2384704
Profit on Muteal Fund/ Bond - 14,183,701
Tutal 69,651,867 79,669,993
230 OTHER INCOME
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Gain On Sale of Fixed Assels 12,587,538 2,076,328
Service Charge 3,171,290 262,191
Printing Materials, Forms & Stamps 243,265 528821
Miscellaneous 10,155,972 3,242,360
Realized Gain or Loss oh Share (20.271,427)

Tuotal 5,886,638 6,111,700

240 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company in its 126th Bopard Meeting held on November 23, 2004 approved for
purchasing of 2 nos. of floor comprising of ( 5831.73°2)=11,663.46 square feet @ Tk. 13,000/~ per square feet

from the land owner of Padma Life Tower Which comes to Tk 15,16,24,980/-. Payment made Tk
11,00,00,000/- up to 3]st December; 2008 and the balance of Tk 4,16,24,980/- remains outstanding as on
31.12.2019.

25.0 CONTINGENT LIABILITY AND CONTINGENT ASSET - BAS-37
There is no Contingent I_'.iabilily and Contingent Asset of the Company as at 31.12.2019
26.0 CREDIT FACILITY AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY

There was no credit facility available to the Company under any contract as on December 31, 2019 other than
trade credit available in the ordinary course of Business

27.0 COMPANIES ACT 1994, SCHEDULE XI PART-II [NOTE 3 (F) (V1) 5]

i) Number of employees drawing salary above Tk-3000 per month 581 931
it} Number of emplovees drawing salary below Th.3000 per month -

28.0 PAYMENT IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Payment for Re-Insurance Operation during the year. | 6,743,481 || 5,884,421 |

290 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There is no significant event that has ocourred between the Balance Sheet date and the date when the Financial
Statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors except the following:

The company assuming significant impact of Covid-19 pandemic in its business in the subsequent period. Due
to country wide Tockdown business development team including the field officers had difficulties to reach
existing and potential policy holder, which has adversely affected quality of business, The company is trving
to overcome the challenges to maintain normal business.




30.0 Related Party Disclosure (IAS - 24)

As per fnternational Accounting Standards (1AS) - 24 "Related Party Disclosure” parties are considered to be related if one
of the party has the ability to control the other party or exercise signibicant influence over the party in making financial and
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operating decision,
Related Party Transactions:;
Transaction value for the
Balance outstanding as at
Mature of | yearended December 31,
1
Name of the Party Relationship BRI 209 December 31, 2019
2014 2018 2019 2018
Pavilion International Lid, Shareholder SUL000,000 | 1000000000 | 18,000,000 | 100,000,000
Crest Holdings Lid. Shareholder Noni Cost BO000,000 | 100,000,000 1 18,000,000 ) 100,000,000
LN
Unitex LP Gas Led, Shareholder Bearing Lo BOO00,000 | 1000000000 | TR000000 | 200,000,000
Unitex Petroloum Lid. Sharcholder 80,000,000 | 100,000,000 | 18,000,000 | 100,000,000
Affimitv Assets Lad Shareholder ROOOD00 | 1000000000 1 TROO0000 1 1041000, 0060

310 PAYMENTS / PERQUISTTES TO DIRECTORS f OFFICERS

The aggregate amounts paid/ provided during the vear in respect of Directors and Officers of the Company as defined in
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 are disclosed below:

Amount in Taka
2019 2018
Particulars N = . .
ANAEINE anaging

Director Directors Officers Director Directors Officers
Board & Com. Megting Fee . 1,104,000 - . 1577800 -
Basic Salary 2,022,000 - 8,420,502 3,240,000 - 107,788,052
House Rent BB, 8O0 z 36,841 876 1,296,000 H 4311521
Other Allowances 539,200 - 24,930,184 i, (00 - 28,743,351
Total 3,370,000 1,104,000 | 150,192,567 5,400,000 1,577,900 | 179,646,654
GENERAL

(i) Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Taka.
(11} Last vear's figures have been re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year's presentation,
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* Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited

Registered Office: Padma LifeTower, |15, Kaxd Muera] [slam Avenoe, Dhaka- 10

PROXY FORM

being o member of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limtited do hereby appoint Me Es MISs bbbt bbb binie
[ OO O S OV ORISR -
a5 myfoar Proxy to-atiend and vote for me'us on my/our behalf' ot the 20™ Annual Geneml Mecting of the Company to be held virtual

bry tising digitnl platform on September 26, 2020 a0 11040 om. to transsct the following business.
Signed e 1 | P 2020,

Ravanun

Stamp
R T E Th 20/~ |  eerrssrrrrrrssimss s sy
Signature of Proxy Signature of the Sharcholder

sowone [ [ | T T T T T LT T T T 1T T 1]

e 11T, e AN D VL P R S DR, 3 1T RS B R CR AR RO A AR AT T

Mode; The Proxy Jomm should rench the Corporate Office of the Company nol less than 72 hours before the time fised Tor the
meeting.

Sigmamre Virified
Anthorized Signatory
Padima Tslami Lifie Insurance Lid.
............................... = = e

* Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited

Registered Office: PadmulafeTower, 113, Koz Nazrul Istam Avenue, Dhoki-1 000,

£

| SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDANCE SLIP )

1 hereby record my atiendance at the 20" Annual General Mecting of the Company o be held viral by using digital platform on
September 26, 2020 a1 [ 100 am. 1o transact the following busingss,

soone | | L T L T L LT 1]

Mumber of shinres hold

Imyportant:

b the Attendianee Slip an the Meeting,
(2) Member are also requested 1o nole that the Annual General Meeting cun only be attended by the honorable Members or property
constituted Proay, Therefore any Fiend or children necompanying with hehomble Members or Proxy can not be allowed into

e meeting.




